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City of OviLLA City Council Agenda

Ralph G. Hall, Place One Richard Dormier, Mayor Doug Hunt, Place Four

Larry Stevenson, Place Two Dean Oberg, Place Five

David Griffin, Place Three Cyndy Powell, City Administrator
105 S. Cockrell Hill Road, Ovilla, TX 75154

Monday, February 24, 2014 7:00 P.M. Council Chamber Room

Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551 VTCA Government Code, NOTICE is hereby given of a Regular
Meeting of the City Council of the City of Ovilla, to be held on Monday, February 24, 2014 at 7:00 P.M. in
the City Hall Council Chamber Room, 105 S. Cockrell Hill Road, Ovilla, Texas, 75154, for the purpose of
considering the following items.

CALL TO ORDER

= |nvocation
s Pledge of Allegiance

COMMENTS, PRESENTATIONS, ANNOUNCEMENTS & REPORTS

= Citizen Comments

The City Council welcomes comments from Citizens. Those wishing to speak must sign in before the meeting
begins. Speakers may speak on any topic, whether on the agenda or not. The City Council cannot act upon,
discuss issues raised, or make any decisions at this time. Speakers under citizen’s comments must observe a
three-minute time limit. Inquiries regarding matters not listed on the Agenda may be referred to Staff for
research and possible future action.

= Department Activity Reports / Discussion

¢ Finance Department Accountant S. Jungman
o Monthly financials
e Administration City Administrator C. Powell

o Bi-weekly update activity reports

CONSENT AGENDA

The following items may be acted upon in one motion. No separate discussion or action is necessary unless
requested by a Council Member, in which event those items will be pulled from the consent agenda for individual
consideration.

A. Minutes of the January 27 Special Council Workshop Meeting

B. Minutes of the January 27, 2014 Regular Councii Meeting

C. Minutes of the February 06, 2014 Special Council Meeting and Training Workshop
D. Minutes of the February 10, 2014 Regular Council Meeting

REGULAR AGENDA
ITEM 1. DISCUSSION/ACTION - Receive presentation from Trinity River Authority representative and
take action as necessary.
ITEM 2. DISCUSSION/ACTION - Consider acceptance of the Annual Financial Audit Report for the
year ending September 30, 2013, prepared by Yeldell, Wilson and Company, C.P.A., P.C.
ITEM 3. DISCUSSION - Review status of City’s progress in obtaining the Leadership Award through

the State Comptroller’s Office.
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Larry Stevenson, Place Two Dean Oberg, Place Five
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ITEM 4. DISCUSSION/ACTION - Consider scheduling a date, time and location for a Town Hall

ITEM 5.

ITEM 6.

Meeting to receive feedback on the draft Citywide Five-Year Strategic Guide.

ITEM 5.DISCUSSION/ACTION - Consider approval of Resolution No. R2014-009
Authorizing the Mayor to execute the Fourth Extension to the Letter of Understanding for
Consultation Services with Jacqueline Lee, Consultant with Texas First Group for an amount
not to exceed $1,100.00.

DISCUSSION/ACTION - Consider recommendation from the EDC and take action to remove
of Place 3 Director Milke pursuant to EDC Bylaws, Article 1V, Section 2 and direct staff to
solicit for applications for board appointment(s).

EXECUTIVE SESSION

The City Council of the City of Ovilla, Texas, reserves the right to meet in a closed session on any item listed on this
Agenda should the need arise, pursuant to authorization by Texas Government Code, Sections 551.071
(consultation with attorney), 551.072 (deliberations about real property), 551.073 (deliberations about gifts and
donations), 551.074 (personnel matters), 551.076 (deliberations about security devices), 551.087 (economic
development), 418.183 (homeland security).

COUNCIL WILL RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION, AND TAKE ACTION
NECESSARY PURSUANT TO EXECUTIVE SESSION, IF NEEDED.

REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

ADJOURNMENT

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT A COPY OF THE NOTICE OF the February 24, 2014 Regular City Council Agenda was
posted on the City Hall bulletin board, a place convenient and readily accessible to the general public at all times, and
to the City’s website, www.cityofovilla.org, on the 21st day of February 2014 prior to 7:00 p.m., in compliance with
Chapter 551, Texas Government Code.

e N

Pamela Woodall, City Secretary

DATE OF POSTING: /.- \2/'20/‘/ TIME: _Z- 90 ___am/pm)
DATE TAKEN DOWN: TIME: am/pm

IF YOU OR YOUR REPRESENTATIVE HAVE A DISABILITY THAT REQUIRES SPECIAL ARRANGEMENTS AND YOU PLAN TO ATTEND
THIS PUBLIC MEETING, PLEASE CALL THE CITY SECRETARY AT 972-617-7262 WITHIN 24 HOURS OF THE MEETING.
REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS WILL BE MADE TO MEET YOUR NEEDS AT THE MEETING. PLEASE SILENCE ALL PAGERS, CELL
PHONES & OTHER ELECTRONIC EQUIPMENT WHILE THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING IS IN SESSION.

0CC2014.02.24
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City Administrator Activity Report

Cyndy Powell
February 10, 2014 — February 14, 2014

Weekly staff meetings — held Tuesdays at 9:00 a.m.

Employee Policies Handbook — Ms. Lee will revise the document with the feedback received from Council at the
January 27" workshop meeting.

Cockrell Hill Road Repairs for FY 2014 — Brad informed me that Roger Miller, Dallas County, has been in
communication with Ellis County regarding the roadwork on Cockrell Hill. Dallas wants to rebuild from Bear Creek
to the county line and is coordinating with Ellis County.

Progressive Solid Waste and Recycling —Spring Cleanup day for Saturday April 26" and May 3™ as the rain date.

Planning and Zoning Commission — There was no business before the P&Z in February.

Five Year Staffing Plan — The Committee (Oberg, Hall, Mayor) will be provided job descriptions for review in the

near future.

Strategic Guide — Council reviewed the feedback received from citizens and directed staff to set another meeting
to hear feedback from the Citizens. Staff will provide an item at a future meeting to set a date/time/location for
a Town Hall meeting for citizens to have another opportunity to give feedback at a special meeting. Once the
Guide is adopted, Joe will schedule a meeting to train staff on developing action plans. Feedback will be shared

with committees.

Economic Development Corporation — Next meeting will be Tuesday, February 18, 2014.

Municipal Development District — pending appointments.

Main Street Sewer Project — A draft development Agreement was mailed to Mr. Sims to share with the property

owners.

ESD#4 Board Meeting — The executed Agreement was mailed to the ESD.

Platinum Award for transparency — Tracie Wood with the auditors has provided the first round of converted

documents for staff review.

Ovilla Service League Dinner - set for Friday, February 21, 2014. Tickets are $12.00 each for adults, $8.00 for
children.

Trinity River Authority — a Council Committee (Hall, Hunt, and Mayor) was formed and will meet on Thursday,
February 20, 2014 at 6:00 p.m. to receive presentation from TRA.

City’s newsletter is planned for April delivery.
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City Administrator Activity Report

Cyndy Powell
January 27, 2014 — February 07, 2014

Weekly staff meetings — held Tuesdays at 9:00 a.m.

Employee Policies Handbook — Ms. Lee will revise the document with the feedback received from Council at the

January 27" workshop meeting.

Cockrell Hill Road Repairs for FY 2014 - Brad informed me that Roger Miller, Dallas County, has been in
communication with Ellis County regarding the roadwork on Cockrell Hill. Dallas wants to rebuild from Bear Creek

to the county line and is coordinating with Ellis County.

Progressive Solid Waste and Recycling — Staff has confirmed with Progressive Spring Cleanup day for Saturday
April 26™ and May 3™ as the rain date.

Planning and Zoning Commission — There was no business before the P&Z in February.

Five Year Staffing Plan — The Committee (Oberg, Hall, Mayor) will be provided job descriptions for review in the

near future.

Strategic Guide — Council will review the feedback received and citizens will have an opportunity to give feedback
during an agenda item at the February 10, 2014 regular Council Meeting. Once the Guide is adopted, Joe will
schedule a meeting to train staff on developing action plans.

Economic Development Corporation — Next meeting will be Tuesday, February 18, 2014 due to President’s Day
holiday on Monday, February 17, 2014.

Municipal Development District — pending appointments.

Main Street Sewer Project — A draft development Agreement is in progress. (During the meeting with the Mayor

and staff on Friday, January 24™ at 3:00 p.m., the property owners, J. Wade, Sims, Crouch, were agreeable to
moving forward with the creation of a development agreement for the project.)

ESD#4 Board Meeting —Bob Mahlstedt and Ray Brindle are the two new board members. At ESD#4 regular
meeting February 03, the Board made revisions to the Agreement that will be presented to Council.

Platinum Award for transparency — Tracie Wood with the auditors is completing the conversion of files for the

Platinum application, Pam is making necessary updates to the web site.

Ovilla Service League Dinner - set for Friday, February 21, 2014. Tickets are $12.00 each for adults, $8.00 for
children. Silent Auction items are needed up to $50.00 value and are due by February 10, 2014.




Trinity River Authority — TRA placed temporary meters at two locations to monitor Ovilla’s sewer flow and found
discrepancies in the data collected and the amount billed to the City. | am evaluating data and sharing with the

auditors.

City’s newsletter is planned for April delivery.
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CONSENT ITEMS A-D

Meeting Date: February 24, 2014 Department: Administration
XDiscussion [X]Action Budgeted Expense: [ [YES [ INO [XIN/A
Submitted by: Staff Amount: N/A

Attachments:

. Minutes of the January 27 Special Council Meeting Workshop

. Minutes of the January 27, 2014 Regular Council Meeting

. Minutes of the February 06, 2014 Special Council Meeting and Training Workshop
. Minutes of the February 10, 2014 Council Meeting

Agenda ltem / Topic:

Discussion / Justification:

Recommendation / Staff Comments:
Staff recommends approval.

Sample Motion(s):
I move to approve the consent items as presented.




CITY OF OVILLA WORKSHOP MINUTES

Monday, January 27, 2014
Special Council Workshop Meeting
105 S. Cockrell Hill Road, Ovilla, TX 75154

Mayor Dormier called the Workshop Meeting of the Ovilla City Council to order at 6:03 P.M. The following
City Council Members were present:

Ralph Hall Mayor Pro Tem, Place |

David Griffin Council Member Place 3

Dean Oberg Council Member Place 5
Late Arrival:  Larry Stevenson Council Member Place 2 (6:17 pm)
Absent: Doug Hunt Council Member Place 4

Mayor Dormier noted present members, thus constituting a quorum. Various department-heads, staff and Ms
Jacqueline Lee (First Texas Group) were present.

REGULAR AGENDA

ITEM I. DISCUSSION - Review and discuss revisions to the Employee Policies Handbook as
presented to the City Council for review.

Ms Jacqueline Lee was present to review and answer Council questions and feedback of the newly developed
Employee Policies Handbook. The presented policy was the second draft, redlined and commented for review.
The Workshop was scheduled to offer Council the opportunity to address the remaining sections of the
Handbook and consider revisions proposed by Ms Lee that were developed during thorough review of the
existing policy with staff.

Council discussed various sections and offered suggested revisions beginning with Section 8:
I. Section 8.5: change bereavement leave from the list 5-days to 3-days.
2. Section 9.14 — revise the 6-month performance appraisal review and remove an automatic 5% increase
and list any increase to be based on individual employee performance.
3. Section 10.12 — Premises versus Property

Additionally, Council briefly reviewed the first seven sections (previously reviewed during the December 11,
2013 workshop) and asked to remove certain language from Section 4.13 pertaining to Other or Outside
Employment: remove “strongly discouraged” from that section.

No Action.

ADJOURNMENT
Mayor Dormier adjourned the meeting at 6:57p.m.

ATTEST: Richard Dormier, Mayor

Pamela Woodall, City Secretary Approved February 24, 2014

Richard Dormier, Mayor 1 Doug Hunt, Place Four
Ralph Hall, Place One David Griffin, Place Three

Larry Stevenson, Place Two Dean Oberg, Place Five



CITY OF OVILLA MINUTES

Monday, January 27, 2014
Regular City Council Meeting
105 S. Cockrell Hill Road, Ovilla, TX 75154

Mayor Dormier called the Regular Council Meeting of the Ovilla City Council to order at 7:05 PM. The
following City Council Members were present:

Ralph Hall Mayor Pro Tem, Piace |
Larry Stevenson Council Member Place 2
David Griffin Council Member Place 3
Doug Hunt Council Member Place 4 (Arrived at 7:13 pm)
Dean Oberg Council Member Place 5

Mayor Dormier noted all Councilmen present, thus constituting a quorum. Various department-heads and
staff were also present.

PL3 Griffin gave the Invocation and PL5 Oberg led the recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance.

COMMENTS, PRESENTATIONS, REPORTS AND/OR APPOINTMENTS

= Citizens Comments | Citizens Forum:

1. None

=  Department Activity Reports / Discussion

e  Finance Department Accountant S. Jungman
e December 2013 financials — reviewed
e Administration City Administrator C. Powell

e Bi-weekly update activity reports - reviewed

CONSENT ITEMS

Minutes of the December 09, 2013 Council Meeting

Minutes of the December | I, 2013 Special Council Workshop Meeting
Quarterly Investment Report

Committed Fund Balance Calculation for quarter ending 12-31-2013

Tier 2 / Racial Profiling Report and Annual UCR stats

Joint Election Agreement Between the Midlothian ISD and the City of Ovilla

TmoNw»

PL5 Oberg made the motion that Council approves the consent items as presented, seconded by Mayor Pro
Tem Hall. No oppositions, no abstentions. (Place 4 Hunt had not yet arrived)
VOTE: The motion carried unanimously: 4-0.

ITEM 1. DISCUSSION/ACTION - Consideration of and action on the nomination and appointment
of one trustee selected by the governing body to represent the City on the City of Ovilla Fire
Department Retirement Board.

PL3 Griffin moved to appoint Fire Chief Brancato as trustee to serve a two-year term on the City of Ovilla
Fire Department Retirement Board, seconded by PL2 Stevenson. No oppositions, no abstentions. (Place 4 Hunt
was present)

VOTE: The motion carried unanimously: 5-0.




OCC Minutes January 27 | 2014

ITEM 2. DISCUSSION - Review status of City’s progress in obtaining the Leadership Award through
the State Comptroller’s Office.

Staff updated Council on the progress for the Leadership Award. A new enhanced program with added
criteria (debt) and a new level (Platinum) was posted on the State Comptroller’s website in late January. Staff
advised they were in the process of preparing the application for 2014 and would submit it as soon as the
audited financials were presented to Council and approved. — The target date of the audit presentation (from
auditors) was February. Mayor Pro Tem Hall advised staff of his desires for Ovilla to apply for the Platinum
level — adding the criteria for debt. PL3 Griffin voiced disappointment that the Gold level had not already been
achieved.

No Action.

ITEM 3. DISCUSSIONIACTION = Consider scheduling a date in February for officials and department
heads to receive training on the National Incident Management System (NIMS).

PL3 Griffin moved that Council set February 6, 2014 at 6:00 p.m., for the G0402 Incident Command System
(NIMS) training for officials and department heads, seconded by PL5 Oberg. No oppositions, no abstentions.
VOTE: The motion carried unanimously: 5-0.

ITEM 4. DISCUSSION/ACTION - Consideration of and action on a request to reconsider Council
action on Ordinance 2014-002 and take action as necessary.

Pursuant to the Rules of Procedure, PL3 Griffin requested Council reconsider action taken (a denial) at the
Regular meeting on January 13, 2014 regarding Ordinance 2014-002. PL3 Griffin voted with the Majority and
made a timely request. Item 5 on the Agenda was provided for City Council to reconsider Ordinance 2014-
002.

PL3 Griffin moved to reconsider Council action on Ordinance 2014-002, Repealing Chapter 14, Article 4,
Sections 33.8 and 33.9, adopting new Residential Parking Regulations and Development Standards, seconded by
PL5 Oberg. No oppositions, no abstentions.

VOTE: The motion carried unanimously: 5-0.

ITEM 5. DISCUSSIONIACTION - Case No. PZ14-001: Reconsideration of and action on
Ordinance 2014-002, repealing Chapter 14, Article 4, Sections 33.8 and 33.9 of the Ovilla
Code of Ordinances, and replacing same with new provisions pertaining to residential off-
street parking and residential parking development standards; providing for penalties; providing
a savings clause; providing a severance clause; providing for incorporation into the Ovilla Code
of Ordinances, providing for immediate effect; and providing for publication.

Council deliberated sharing differing opinions.

PL5 Oberg moved that Council approve proposed Ordinance 2014-002, repealing Chapter 14, Article 4,
Sections 33.8 and 33.9m adopting new Residential Parking Regulations and Development Standards as
presented, seconded by PL2 Stevenson. Mayor Pro Tem Hall and PL4 Hunt voted in opposition. No
abstentions.

VOTE: The motion carried 3 in favor of approval, 2 opposed.

ITEM 6. DISCUSSION/ACTION = Consideration of and action on scheduling Special Joint Workshop
meeting with the Planning and Zoning Commission on February 3, 7:00 p.m., for the purpose

Richard Dormier, Mayor 2 Doug Hunt, Place Four
Ralph Hall, Place One David Griffin, Place Three
Larry Stevenson, Place Two Dean Oberg, Place Five
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of modifying the existing residential off-street parking and residential parking development
standards in Chapter 4.

Based on the action of Item 5, Item 6 was not addressed.

No Action.

ITEM 7. DISCUSSIONIACTION - Consideration of and action declaring certain City equipment
and/or property that are no longer needed as surplus property and determining method of
disposal.

Staff submitted a list of operable property to be declared surplus and recommended disposal through sale by
on-line auction. Staff submitted a worksheet with recommendations to dispose of all surplus items by on-line
auction.

PL4 Hunt moved to approve declaring certain City equipment and/or property that are no longer needed as
surplus property, seconded by PL5 Oberg. No oppositions, no abstentions.
VOTE: The motion carried unanimously: 5-0.

PL4 Hunt moved that Council approve the method of disposal of declared surplus items for sale by auction on
the Rene Bates Auctioneers, Inc., on-line web site, seconded by PL5 Oberg. No oppositions, no abstentions.
VOTE: The motion carried unanimously: 5-0.

Mayor Dormier and Council convened into Executive Session at 8:13 p.m.
Mayor Dormier and Council reconvened into Regular Session at 9:37 p.m.
Mayor Dormier announced that no decisions were made in Executive Session.

ITEM 8. DISCUSSION/IACTION = The City Council will meet in closed session for consultation with
legal counsel pursuant to Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code for consultation and
review of litigation, Cause 87776, in the 40t Judicial District Court for Ellis County, TX, styled
Penny Goetz v. City of Ovilla. Council may consider and take action authorizing the Mayor to
execute a Settlement Agreement and Release.

PL5 Oberg moved that Council authorize the Mayor to execute the presented Settlement Agreement and
Release of litigation, Cause 87776, in the 40t Judicial District Court of Ellis County, TX, styled Penny Goetz vs.
City of Ovilla, seconded by PL2 Stevenson. No oppositions, no abstentions.

VOTE: The motion carried unanimously: 5-0.

ITEM 9. DISCUSSIONIACTION - The City Council will meet in closed session pursuant to Section
551.074 of the Texas Government Code for consultation and review pertaining to the
appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment or duties of the City Administrator.

Mayor Pro Tem Hall moved that pursuant to the six-month employment evaluation Council approve a 3%
salary increase to the City Administrator effective February |, 2014, seconded by PL2 Stevenson. No
oppositions, no abstentions.

VOTE: The motion carried unanimously: 5-0.

REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

I. Mayor Pro Tem Hall None

2. PL2 Stevenson None

3. PL3 Griffin None
Richard Dormier, Mayor 3 Doug Hunt, Place Four
Ralph Hall, Place One David Griffin, Place Three

Larry Stevenson, Place Two Dean Oberg, Place Five
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4. PL4 Hunt None
5. PL5 Oberg Status of storm shelters
6. Mayor Dormier Reminded elected officials and department heads of the February 06, 6:00
p-m., NIMS training in the Fire Department Training Room.
ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, Mayor Dormier adjourned the meeting at 9:39 p.m.

Richard Dormier, Mayor
ATTEST:

Approved February 24, 2014

Pamela Woodall, City Secretary

Executive Session Agenda filed and sealed separately.

Richard Dormier, Mayor 4 Doug Hunt, Place Four
Ralph Hall, Place One David Griffin, Place Three

Larry Stevenson, Place Two Dean Oberg, Place Five



CITY OF OVILLA SPECIAL MEETING

WORKSHOP MINUTES
Monday, February 06, 2014
Special Council Workshop Meeting
Larry Marlow Fire Department Training Room
105 S. Cockrell Hill Road, Ovilla, TX 75154

Mayor Dormier called the Workshop Meeting of the Ovilla City Council to order at 6:03 P.M. The following
City Council Members were present:

Larry Stevenson Council Member Place 2
David Griffin Council Member Place 3
Doug Hunt Council Member Place 4
Dean Oberg Council Member Place 5
Absent: Ralph Hall Mayor Pro Tem, Place |

Mayor Dormier noted present members, thus constituting a quorum. Required Department Heads were
present: City Administrator Cyndy Powell, Police Chief Mike Moon, Fire Chief Phillip Brancato, City
Accountant Sharon Jungman and City Secretary Pam Woodall.

REGULAR AGENDA

ITEM I. DISCUSSIONIACTION = The Ovilla Mayor, City Council and assigned staff will receive
training on GO0402, an Incident Command System (ICS) for emergency preparedness and
recovery utilizing the National Incident Management System (NIMS).

Police Chief Moon lectured on the training session of ICS-402 Overview for Executives/Senior Officials,
Student Manual offered by FEMA. Fire Chief Brancato assisted with the instruction, both sharing fitting
examples of the training that correspond to the workplace. The training was informal with class participation.
Topics of training and review covered:

Incident Command System (ICS)

l.
2. ICS Mandates and NIMS Preparedness
3. Organization and Features — Summary of Management Roles
4. Overall Priorities
5. Unified & Area Command
6. Resources
7. Managing Public Information
8. Management Assessment and After-Action Review
No Action.
ADJOURNMENT

Mayor Dormier adjourned the meeting at 8:30p.m.

ATTEST: Richard Dormier, Mayor

Approved February 24, 2014

Pamela Woodall, City Secretary

Richard Dormier, Mayor 1 Doug Hunt, Place Four
Ralph Hall, Place One David Griffin, Place Three
Larry Stevenson, Place Two Dean Oberg, Place Five



CITY OF OVILLA MINUTES

Monday, February 10, 2014
Regular City Council Meeting
105 S. Cockrell Hill Road, Ovilla, TX 75154

Mayor Dormier called the Regular Council Meeting of the Ovilla City Council to order at 7:03 P.M. The
following City Council Members were present:

Ralph Hall Mayor Pro Tem, Place |
Larry Stevenson Council Member Place 2
David Griffin Council Member Place 3
Doug Hunt Council Member Place 4
Dean Oberg Council Member Place 5

Mayor Dormier announced all Councilmen present, thus constituting a quorum. Various department-heads
and staff were also present.

PL5 Oberg gave the Invocation and Mayor Dormier led the recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance.

COMMENTS, PRESENTATIONS, REPORTS ANDIOR APPOINTMENTS

e Cijtizens Comments | Citizens Forum:

I. Three individuals signed up to speak regarding ltems D and E under the Consent Agenda.

=  Department Activity Reports / Discussion

e Police Department Police Chief M. Moon
e Monthly Report
e Introduced three new officers, Charles Matthews, Damien Snavely, and Aaron Westmoreland.

e Fire Department Fire Chief P. Brancato
e Monthly Report
e Public Works Public Works Director B. Piland
e Monthly Report
e Finance Department Accountant S. Jungman
e Monthly financials
e Administration City Administrator C. Powell
e Bi-weekly update activity report
e Monthly Municipal Court Report City Secretary P. Woodall

e Briefed Council on monthly and annual reports and gave collections, warrants and
violation comparisons from the previous year.
e Code Enforcement/Animal Control Code/A/C Officer M. Dooly
e Monthly Reports

CONSENT ITEMS
Mayor Dormier allowed those that signed up to speak:

 Ms Marilyn Langenheder President of the Ovilla Service League voiced concerns and
disapproval regarding ltems D and E on the Consent Agenda.

= Ms Rachel Huber spoke on behalf of the Ovilla Service League stating disapproval of ltems
D and E on the Consent Agenda.

®  Mr. Ron Langenheder submitted a letter of disapproval (including inquiries) to the Council
regarding ltems D and E on the Consent Agenda.
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A. Minutes of the January 13, 2014 Special Council Meeting & Workshop (with City Appointed Board
and Commission Members)

B. Minutes of the January 13, 2014 Council Meeting

C. Financial Transactions

D. Resolution R2014-003 Naming authorized signatures on the Fire Department — Voluntary
Auxiliary Fund Bank Account

E. Resolution R2014-004 Naming authorized signatures on the Police Department Special Fund Bank

Account
F. Authorize Mayor to execute a Debt Transparency Pledge to accompany the Platinum Award
Application to the TX State Comptroller’s office

PL3 Griffin pulled Items D and E from the Consent Agenda for further discussion:
Those items were labeled —

Item D, Resolution 2014-003 - A

Item E, Resolution 2014-004 — IB

Council deliberated over both resolutions, stating that two signatures on each account was not intended to
regulate expenses made by the two Chiefs, nor their judgment, but rather provide internal control and
transparency. The governing body would continue permitting full discretion to the Chiefs.

PL3 Griffin moved that Council take no action on Resolutions R2014-003 and R2014-004, seconded by PL4
Hunt. Mayor Pro Tem Hall abstained.
VOTE: The motion carried 4 in favor of No Action, | abstention.

PL4 Hunt made the motion that Council approves the remaining consent items as presented, seconded by PL2
Stevenson. No oppositions, no abstentions.

VOTE: The motion carried unanimously: 5-0.

I.  REGULAR AGENDA

ITEM I. DISCUSSION - Receive presentation on ESD #2'’s purchase of Lucas CPR Devices.

Fire Chief Brancato and Captain Jason Cates gave a demonstration of the new chest compression devices and
voiced appreciation to the ESD #2 for providing them to the Ovilla Fire Department.
Discussion only.

ITEM 2. DISCUSSION = Receive feedback regarding the draft Strategic Guide from the citizens of
Ovilla.

Staff shared received feedback from citizens on the Strategic Guide, categorized the comments and shared
with Council and the facilitator. PL3 Griffin suggested a language revision of the mission statement.
Mayor Dormier acknowledged resident Mr. James Northum who gave comments and questions:

I) Map available?

2) Asked for clarification of the plan

3) How will taxes and increased living expenses be controlled?

4) Asked that more effort be made to solicit resident participation and knowledge

Council and Mayor Dormier explained that this presented document was merely a detailed outline of how to
prepare the final Strategic Plan. The Plan depicted Ovilla’s potential future build-out being approximately
10,000 and currently there are 2000 acres of undeveloped land in Ovilla city limits. It may prove beneficial to
host another Town Hall Session.

Discussion only.

Richard Dormier, Mayor 2 Doug Hunt, Place Four

Ralph Hall, Place One David Griffin, Place Three
Larry Stevenson, Place Two Dean Oberg, Place Five
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ITEM 3. DISCUSSION/ACTION - Consideration of and action on Resolution R2014-005 adopting
the Citywide Five-Year Strategic Guide.

City Administrator relayed that once the plan was adopted, the consultant would work with staff and form
committees with citizen participation. Council agreed to direct staff to meet again with the facilitator and plan
another Town Hall Meeting to engage additional citizen participation and ensure that Ovilla citizens are invited
to attend and aware of the meeting. EDC President Gary Jones was present and agreed with Council.

No Action.

ITEM 4. DISCUSSIONIACTION - Consideration of and action on Resolution R2014-006 authorizing
the Mayor to execute an Interlocal Cooperation Agreement for Fire Protection and First
Responder Services with Ellis County Emergency Services District #4 as revised.

In September 2013, the City began negotiations with Emergency Services District #4 (Board) to finalize the
annual agreement to provide fire protection and first responder services to the District. A negotiated
Agreement was approved by Council in October 2013 accepting a reduced payment in return for the ESD #4’s
commitment of a May 2014 tax rate election; a lump sum amount of $18,531 paid in three installments and
striking indemnification language. Additionally, Council approved Resolution R2013-013 that gave a September
30, 2014 deadline for the provision of services and first responder services to ESD #4.

During the ESD #4’s November 04, 2013 meeting, the Board rejected Ovilla’s striking of the indemnification
clause and asked the City Council to reconsider reinstating the indemnification clause. At the December 09,
2013, Council meeting the City Council reinstated the indemnification language based on legal counsel’s
opinion that the language was voidable under Texas law. The Agreement was again considered by the ESD #4
Board at their February 03, 2014 meeting, which they revised Section 17 with the removal of the May 2014
date for a future tax rate election and modified that section to read “The District, in good faith, will pursue to
hold an election for the purpose of a tax rate increase to provide additional revenues for the District.”
Council considered the ESD’s suggested modification to the Agreement.

Mayor Pro Tem Hall moved that Council approve Resolution R2014-006 authorizing the Mayor to execute an
Interlocal Cooperation Agreement for Fire Protection and First Responder Services with Ellis County
Emergency Services District #4 as revised, seconded by PL3 Griffin. PL4 Hunt voted in opposition. No
abstentions.

VOTE: Motion carried 4-1 (4 in favor of approval, opposed).

ITEM 5. DISCUSSION/ACTION = Consideration of and action on Resolution R2014-007, authorizing
the Mayor to execute an Agreement with Birkhoff, Hendricks and Carter, LLP, Consulting
Engineers, for a Storm Water Management Plan Study.

The Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) issued the Texas Pollutants Discharge Elimination
System (TPDES) General Permit No. TXR040000 for discharges from small municipal separate storm sewer
systems (MS4s) on August 16, 2013 that required amendment and reissuance of a General Storm Water
Permit for Phase Il MS4s. The engineering firm of Birkhoff, Hendricks and Carter, LLP, prepared the City’s
prior study for the SWMP and submitted a proposed Agreement to complete the 2014 Storm Water
Management Plan Study in an amount not to exceed $8,000.00. The item was not budgeted for fiscal year
2013-2014, therefore required the approval of Council.

PL4 Hunt moved that Council approve Resolution R2014-007 authorizing the Mayor to execute an Agreement
with Birkhoff, Hendricks and Carter, LLP, for a Storm Water Management Plan Study as presented, seconded
by PL5 Oberg.

VOTE: The motion carried unanimously: 5-0.

Richard Dormier, Mayor 3 Doug Hunt, Place Four
Ralph Hall, Place One David Griffin, Place Three
Larry Stevenson, Place Two Dean Oberyg, Place Five
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ITEM 6. DISCUSSIONIACTION - Consideration of and action on Ordinance 2014-003 of the City of
Ovilla amending the Fiscal year 2013-2014 General Fund Budget and annual program of
services for an adjustment of $8,000 for an expenditure for the Storm Water Management
Plan Study.

Based on Item 5, a budget amendment was made.

PL3 Griffin moved that Council approve Ordinance 2014-003 amending the Fiscal Year 2013-14 General Fund
Budget and Annual Program of Services for the City of Ovilla to allow for an adjustment of $8,000 for
expenditures for professional engineering services for a 2014 Storm Water Management Plan Study in
accordance with the TCEQ requirements, seconded by PL2 Stevenson.

VOTE: The motion carried unanimously: 5-0.

ITEM 7. DISCUSSION/ACTION = Consider two Council appointments including ex-officio Member
Mayor Dormier, establishing a City Council Finance Committee and consider scheduling a date
and time of the committee meeting.

The City contracts with the Trinity River Authority of Texas (TRA) to process wastewater for those residents
on sanitary sewer through the Red Oak Creek Regional Wastewater System (ROC). TRA formally notified
the City on January 31, 2014 of irregularities in the wastewater flow meter data versus the amount of
wastewater TRA invoices the City. Once the Committee was formed, a meeting would be scheduled open to
the public. The Committee would review and compare data from TRA and the City and make a
recommendation to Council at a future meeting.

PL2 Stevenson moved to approve the establishment of a City Council Finance Committee and appoint Council
Members Mayor Pro Tem Hall and PL4 Hunt to the Committee along with ex-officio Mayor Dormier, AND
moved to schedule Thursday, February 20, 2014 at 6:00 pm at City Hall for the meeting, seconded by PL3
Griffin.

VOTE: The motion carried unanimously: 5-0.

ITEM 8. DISCUSSION/ACTION = Consideration of and action on Resolution R2014-008 authorizing
the City Administrator to execute an optional one-year extension of the depository services
contract between the City of Ovilla and Prosperity Bank.

The City's depository service agreement with Prosperity Bank began June 2010 for a period not to exceed 5-
years. Following an initial contract term (3-years), the agreement provided for two optional, one-year
renewals, awarded one-year at a time. The presented one-year renewal scheduled to expire in May 2015,
represented the final of two optional extensions. The agreement would be automatically extended upon
mutual agreement of the bank and the City. Prosperity Bank confirmed their intent and agreement to renew
the existing contract for one more year.

PL4 Hunt moved that Council approve Resolution R2014-008 authorizing the City Administrator to execute a
one-year extension of the depository service contract between the City of Ovilla and Prosperity Bank as
presented, seconded by PL2 Stevenson.

VOTE: The motion carried unanimously: 5-0.

ITEM 9. DISCUSSION/ACTION - Consideration of and action on Ordinance 2014-004, in
accordance with Chapter |, Section 1.02.002 of the Ovilla Code of Ordinances, declaring an
official city newspaper.

Richard Dormier, Mayor 4 Doug Hunt, Place Four
Ralph Hall, Place One David Griffin, Place Three
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PL3 Griffin moved that Council approve the adoption of Ordinance 2014-004, declaring the Waxahachie Daily
Light as the City’s official newspaper for the calendar year, effective this date.

REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Mayor Pro Tem Hall  None

l.

2. PL2 Stevenson None

3. PL3 Griffin None

4. PL4 Hunt None

5. PL5 Oberg None

6. Mayor Reminder that Monday, February 17 was a holiday (President’s Day).
ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, Mayor Dormier adjourned the meeting at 8:58 p.m.

Richard Dormier, Mayor
ATTEST:

Approved February 24, 2014

Pamela Woodall, City Secretary

Richard Dormier, Mayor 5 Doug Hunt, Place Four
Ralph Hall, Place One David Griffin, Place Three
Larry Stevenson, Place Two Dean Oberg, Place Five



Ovilla City Council
AGENDA ITEM REPORT

Item(S) 1 (City Secretary use only)

Meeting Date: February 24, 2014 Department: Public Works Department
XDiscussion [X|Action Budgeted Expense: [ IYES [XINO [IN/A
Submitted By: Staff Amount: $N/A

Attachments:

Agenda ltem / Topic:

ITEM 1. DISCUSSION/ACTION - Receive presentation from Trinity River Authority
representatives and take action as necessary.

Discussion / Justification:

The Trinity River Authority of Texas (TRA) is contracted by the City to process wastewater for those
residents on sanitary sewer through the Red Oak Creek Regional Wastewater System (ROC). TRA
formally notified the City on January 31, 2014 of irregularities in the wastewater flow meter data
versus the amount of wastewater TRA bills the City. Representatives from TRA will make a
presentation and respond to questions from City Council regarding the irregularities in the
wastewater flow data versus the wastewater billed to the City.

The City Council Finance Committee received a presentation from Trinity River Authority
representatives on Thursday, February 20, 2014 and deliberated with staff and TRA representatives.

Recommendation / Staff Comments:

Sample Motion(s):




0vi|la City Council
AGENDA ITEM REPORT

[tem (S) 1 2 (City Secretary use only)

Meeting Date: February 24, 2014 Department: Administration
XIDiscussion [X]Action Budgeted Expense: [ [YES [ |NO [XIN/A
Submitted By: Staff Amount: $N/A

Attachments:

1. Annual Financial Report FY2012-2013

Agenda ltem / Topic:

ITEM 2. DISCUSSION/ACTION - Consider acceptance of the Annual Financial Audit Report for
the year ending September 30, 2013, prepared by Yeldell, Wilson and Company,
C.P.A, P.C.

Discussion / Justification:

Greer Yeldell with Yeldell, Wilson & Co., P.C. will present the Annual Financial Report for the City’s
fiscal year ending September 30, 2013.

Recommendation / Staff Comments:

Sample Motion(s):

I move that Council APPROVE/DENY the Annual Financial Audit Report for the year ending
September 30, 2013, prepared by Yeldell, Wilson, and Company.




Yeldell, Wilson & Co., P.C.

Certified Public Accountants
Greer Yeldell, CPA 1 Glen Wilson, CPA | Brooke Farmer, CPA | Jovee Reeve, CPA 1 Glenda Valek, CPA

February 10, 2014

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Qvilla, Texas

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Ovilla,
Texas for the year ended September 30, 2013. Professional standards require that we provide
you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, as
well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have
communicated such information in our engagement letter to you dated February 1, 2013.
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information
related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by City of Ovilla, Texas are described in Note 1 to the
financial statements. As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, the City of Ovilla, Texas
changed accounting policies related to financial reporting of deferred outflows, inflows and net
position as well as items previously reported as assets and liabilities by adopting Statement of
Governmental Accounting Standards (GASB Statement) No. 63, Financial Reporting of
Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, and GASB
Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, in 2013. Accordingly, the
cumulative effect of the accounting change as of the beginning of the year is reported in the
Statement of Activities and Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. We
noted no transactions entered into by the governmental unit during the year for which there is a
lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in
the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management
and are based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that
future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive
estimates affecting the City of Ovilla, Texas’ financial statements were:

Management’s estimate of the allowance for accumulated depreciation is based
on the estimated useful life of the capital asset. We evaluated the key factors and
assumptions used to develop the allowance for accumulated depreciation in
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a
whole.

Members of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants / Members of Private Companies Practice Section
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Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Ovilla
Page Two

Management's estimate of the City’s proportionate share of the annual operation,
maintenance and debt service costs of the Red Oak Creek Wastewater System is
based on the City’s estimated wastewater flow into the system along with the flow
from all other contracting parties. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions
used to develop the City's wastewater treatment cost in determining that it is
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and
completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified
during the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the
appropriate level of management. The attached schedule summarizes uncorrected
misstatements of the financial statements. Management has determined that their effects are
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting,
reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant
to the financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such
disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the
management representation letter dated February 10, 2014.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial
statements or a determination of the type of auditor’'s opinion that may be expressed on those
statements, our professional standards require the consuiting accountant to check with us to
determine that the consuitant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such
consultations with other accountants.




Honorable Mayor and City Council
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Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit's
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional
relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made
certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the
information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the
prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the
financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the
underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves.

This information is intended solely for the use of City Council and management of the City of
Ovilla, Texas and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Very truly yours,

W' Lilni o, €.

Yeldell, Wilson & Co., P.C.
Certified Public Accountants



City of Ovilla, Texas
Uncorrected Misstatements

Date
Account Net Income
Reference Type Number Description Debit Credit Effect Misstatement
01P01 Potential 09/30/13
01-5805570  Inventory Expense 4,329.00
01-1060000  Inventory on Hand 4,329.00
(4,329.00)
To propose an entry to reduce
inventory per results of price testing.
Closing entry.
10P01 Potential 09/30/13
10-2320000  Sales Tax Payable 13,463.53
10-3630000  Unres/Undesign Fund Balance 13,463.53
0.00

To propose an entry to adjust prior
year sales tax payable to actual.

TOTAL 17,792.53 17,792.53 (4,329.00)




~ Yeldell, Wilson & Co., P.C.
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February 10, 2014

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Ovilla, Texas

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Ovilla, Texas as of and for the year ended September 30, 2013, in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the City of Ovilla, Texas’ internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Ovilla, Texas’ internal control. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Ovilla, Texas’ internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
significant or deficiencies and therefore material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that
were not identified. However, as discussed below, we identified a deficiency in internal control that we
consider to be a material weakness.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or combination of
deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We
consider the following deficiency in the City of Ovilla, Texas’ internal control to be a material weakness:

1. Preparation of Financial Statements — We were requested to draft the audited financial statements and
related footnote disclosures as part of our regular audit services. Current auditing standards require
auditors to communicate this situation to the Council as an internal control deficiency. Ultimately, it is
management'’s responsibility to provide for the preparation of your statements and footnotes, and the
responsibility of the auditor to determine the fairness of presentation of those statements. However,
based on current auditing standards, it is our responsibility to inform you that this deficiency could
result in a material misstatement to the financial statements that could have been prevented or
detected by your management. Essentially, the auditors can not be part of your internal control
process.

From a practical standpoint, we prepare the statements and determine the fairness of the presentation
at the same time in connection with our audit. This is not unusual for us to do with municipalities of
your size.

The effectiveness of the internal control system relies on enforcement by management. The effect of
deficiencies in internal controls can result in undetected errors. We have instructed management to
review a draft of the auditor prepared financials in detail for accuracy and we have answered any
questions that management might have. We are satisfied that the appropriate steps have been taken
to provide you with the completed financial statements.
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Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Ovilla, Texas
Page Two

Under the circumstances, the most effective controls lie in management’s knowledge of the
City’s financial operations. It is the responsibility of management and those charged with
governance to make the decisions whether to accept the degree of risk associated with this
condition because of cost and other consideration. Regarding the specific situations listed
above, we would offer the following specific recommendations: 1) Utilize a disclosure checklist
to ensure all required disclosures are present and agree to work papers, and 2) Agree your
accounting information to the amounts reported in the financial statements.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the City of
Ovilla, Texas, and others within the organization, and is not intended to be, and should not be,
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

- A Y
W LAl S

Yeldell, Wilson & Co., P.C.
Certified Public Accountants



CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES -

WATER OPERATING REVENUES
Water sales
Sewer service charge
Impact fees
Infrastructure improvement fees
Miscellaneous

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Water administration
Water expenses
Sewer expenses
Depreciation
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ENTERPRISE FUND - WATER AND SEWER
Year Ended September 30, 2013

Variance with

Actual Adjustments Actual Final Budget

Budget Armounts GAAP Budget Budget  Over (Under)
Original Final Basis Basis Basis Budget

$1,100,000 $ 895000 $ 891686 § (55096) $ 886,090 $ (108910)

150,000 150,000 174,797 (13,963) 160,834 10,834

1,105 2,053 4,358 - 4,358 2,305

55,000 55,000 58,123 (1,466) 56,657 1,657

31,000 31,000 51,767 122 51,889 20,889

$1,337,105 $ 1,233,053 $1,180,731 $ (20,903) $1,159,828 $ (73,225)

$ 136317 % 136,263 $ 125305 $ (1,421) $ 123,884 $ (12,369)

657,428 668,872 578,381 11,442 589,823 (79,049)

153,185 161,755 286,476 (134,785) 151,691 (10,064)

- - 179,813 (179,813) - -

$ 946,930 $ 986,880 $1,169975 §$ (304577) $ 865308 $ (101,482)

52




CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

Year Ended September 30, 2013




CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
Year Ended September 30, 2013

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Independent Auditor's Report
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (unaudited)
Basic Financial Statements:
Government-wide Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Assets
Statement of Activities
Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Statement of Net Assets - Proprietary Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets —
Proprietary Fund

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
Required Supplementary Information:

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
- Budget and Actual - General Fund

PAGE

3-10

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20-43

44-45

45




CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
Year Ended September 30, 2013

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules:
Combining Balance Sheet — Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances — Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
— Budget and Actual - Debt Service Fund

Schedule of Operating Revenues and Expenses — Budget and
Actual — Enterprise Fund — Water and Sewer

Combining Component Unit Financial Statements
Combining Balance Sheet - Component Units

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Component Units

Supplementary Financial Data:

Miscellaneous Statistical Facts

PAGE

46-52

47

48

50

52

53-55

54

55

56-57

57




Yeldell, Wilson & Co., P.C.

Certified Public Accountants
Greer Yeldell, CPA 1 Glen Wilson, CPA | Brooke Farmer, CPA | Joyee Reeve, CPA 1 Glenda Valek, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Ovilla, Texas

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the aggregate discretely presented components units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of City of Ovilla, Texas, as of and for the year ended September
30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the City of Ovilla, Texas, as of September 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
1
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To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Qvilla, Texas

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3-11 and 45 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Ovilla, Texas’ basic financial statements. The combining and individual
fund financial statements and schedules, the combining component unit financial statements and the
supplementary financial data are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules, the combining component unit
financial statements and the supplementary financial data are the responsibility of management and
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
In our opinion, the combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules, the combining
component unit financial statements and the supplementary financial data are fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

W!/Wé,/{é

Yeldell, Wilson & Co., P.C.
Cetrtified Public Accountants

February 10, 2014



CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS

105 South Cockrell Hill Road - Ovilla, Texas 75154 - (972) 617-7262 - FAX (972) 515-3221

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the City of Ovilla, we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2013.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$698,419.

e The City’s total net position increased by $204,782.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $1,585,157. Over 88% of this total amount, $1,407,803 is unassigned and
available for use within the City’s designation and policies.

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was
$1,407,803 or 62% of the total general fund expenditures.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial
statements. The City’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements and 3) notes to the financial statements. This
report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements
themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed
to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector
business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or
deteriorating.




The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported when the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future
fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused compensated absences).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-
type activities). The governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety,
streets, cultural and recreational, and solid waste. The business-type activities of the City include
water and sewer operations.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary
government), but also a legally separate economic development corporation and municipal
development district which function for City is financially accountable. Financial information for these
component units are reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary
government itself.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 12-13 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like
other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into two categories-
governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on current
sources and uses of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available
at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statements of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains five individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and in the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for the General fund and Debt Service fund, both of
which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other three funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.
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The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 14-16 of this report.

Proprietary Funds. The City maintains one type of proprietary fund. The enterprise fund is used to
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The City uses the enterprise fund to account for its water and sewer operations.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements,
only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the
Water and Sewer fund since it is considered to be a major fund of the City.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 17-19 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The
notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 20-43 of this report.

Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report also presents combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major
governmental funds. Combining and individual statements and schedules can be found on pages 46-
50 of this report.

This report presents an individual find financial schedule in connection with the water and sewer
fund. This individual fund financial schedule can be found on page 52 of this report.

This report also present combining fund financial statements and schedules in connection with the
Ovilla 4A Economic Development Corporation and the Ovilla Municipal Development District. The
individual fund financial statements and schedules can be found on pages 53-55.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $698,419 as of September 30, 2013.

A large portion of the City’s net position reflects its investments in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings,
improvements, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure), less any debt used to acquire those
assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide service to citizens;
consequently these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay
this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used
to liquidate these liabilities.




CITY OF OVILLA'S NET POSITION

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Current and other assets $ 2,096,732 $ 1,540,796 $ 1,400173 $ 1,338,776 § 3,496,905 $ 2,879,572
Capital assets 1,845,157 2,006,416 2,844,358 3,000,630 4,689,515 5,007,046
Total assets 3,941,889 3,547,212 4,244 531 4,339,406 8,186,420 7,886,618
Long term liabilities 5,394,891 5,722,818 1,324,198 1,405,533 6,719,089 7,128,351
Other liabilities 516,763 166,215 252,149 98,416 768,912 264,631
Total liabilities 5,911,654 5,889,033 1,676,347 1,503,949 7,488,001 7,392,982
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets (3,508,888) (3,675,509) 1,666,957 1,742,787 (1,841,931) (1,932,722)
Restricted 177,354 190,885 109,575 119,748 286,929 310,633
Unrestricted 1,361,769 1,142,803 891,652 972,922 2,253,421 2,115,725
Total net position (deficit) $ (1,969,765 $ (2,341,821) $ 2668184 $ 2835457 $ 698,419 $ 493,636

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year data to conform with the current year
presentation.

An additional portion of the City’'s net position represents resources that are subject to external
restriction on how they may be used.

As noted on page 9, the City’s net investment in capital assets increased as a result of the purchase
of machinery and equipment, while long-term debt decreased due to scheduled debt payments being
made.

Analysis of the City’s Operations. The following table provides a summary of the City’s operations
for the year ended September 30, 2013. Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by
$372,056 and business-type activities decreased the City’s net position by $167,274.




CITY OF OVILLA’'S CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 607,256 % 455,013 $ 1,180,731 $ 1,172,301 § 1,787,987 $§ 1,627,314
Operating grants and
contributions 18,720 26,560 - - 18,720 26,560
General revenues:
Property tax 1,668,401 1,685,846 - - 1,668,401 1,685,846
Sales tax 221,114 201,432 - - 221,114 201,432
Franchise tax 149,703 151,591 - - 149,703 151,591
Investment earnings 7,265 6,534 3,150 3,318 10,415 9,852
Gain on sale of capital
assets 32,196 - - - 32,196 -
Miscellaneous 136,713 106,324 - - 136,713 106,324
Total revenues 2,841,368 2,633,300 1,183,881 1,175,619 4,025,249 3,808,919
Expenses:
General government 341,985 358,075 - - 341,985 359,075
Public safety 1,498,932 1,434,719 - - 1,498,932 1,434,719
Streets 371,237 291,644 - - 371,237 291,644
Cultural and
recreational 21,695 16,324 - - 21,695 16,324
Solid waste 199,979 196,493 - - 199,979 196,493
Interest on long-
term debt 174,287 181,211 - - 174,287 181,211
Water and sewer - - 1,212,352 1,058,901 1,212,352 1,058,901
Total expenses 2,608,115 2,479,466 1,212,352 1,058,901 3,820,467 3,538,367
Increase in net position
before transfers 233,253 153,834 (28,471) 116,718 204,782 270,552
Transfers 138,803 137,200 (138,803) (137,200) - -
Increase in net position 372,056 291,034 (167,274) (20,482) 204,782 270,552
Net position - beginning, as restated (2,341,821) (2,632,855) 2,835,457 2,855,939 493,636 223,084
Net position - ending $ (1,969,765) $ (2,341,821) $ 2,668,183 $ 2,835457 § 698,418 $ 493,636

e The majority of the increase in revenue resulted from a increase in charges for services of about
$152,000.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT’S FUNDS

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing
the City’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.




As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $1,585,157. Approximately 89% of this total amount $1,407,803 constitutes
unassigned fund balance. The remainder of the fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not
available for new spending because it has already been restricted to pay for (1) public safety in the
amount of $26,288, (2) cultural and recreational in the amount of $40,980, and (3) debt service in the
amount of $110,086.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $1,407,803. Unassigned fund balance represents
62% of total general fund expenditures.

The fund balance of the City’s general fund increased $231,806 during the current fiscal year.

The debt service fund has a total fund balance of $110,086. The net decrease in fund balance
during the current year in the debt service fund was $36,848.

Proprietary Funds. The City’s proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information
found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the Water and Sewer fund at the end of the year amounted to $891,652.
Net position decreased in 2013 by $167,274. Other factors concerning the finances of this fund
have already been addressed in the analysis of the City’s operations.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights. General fund actual revenues of $2,323,394 exceeded
budgeted revenues of $2,248,192 by $75,202.

Budgeted general fund expenditures of $2,386,389 exceeded actual expenditures of $2,257,810.
This $128,579 positive variance in expenditures was achieved through a series of expenditure
restrictions imposed during the year.

The main components of the difference between original budget and final amended budget can be
briefly summarized as follows:

e $21,000 increase in sales tax revenue

e $62,000 increase in charges for services revenue

¢ $81,000 increase in general government expenditures
¢ $39,000 increase in fire protection expenditures




CAPITAL ASSETS

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
September 30, 2013 amounts to $4,689,515 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in
capital assets includes land, construction in progress, buildings, improvements, machinery and

equipment, and infrastructure.

Maijor capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

e Machinery and equipment additions of approximately $221,000.
e |Infrastructure improvements of approximately $164,00.

Capital Assets at Year-End
Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Land $ 147035 $ 92685 $ 86700 $ 86700 $ 233735 $ 179,385
Construction in progress - - 14,740 - 14,740 -
Buildings 174,435 185,029 62,119 64,450 236,554 249,479
Improvements - - 2,577,323 2,734,201 2,577,323 2,734,201
Machinery and equipment 657,972 827,313 103,476 115,279 761,448 942,592
Infrastructure 865,715 901,389 - - 865,715 901,389
Total $ 1,845,157 $2,006416 §$ 2,844,358 § 3,000,630 $ 4,689,515 $ 5,007,046

Additional information on the City of Ovilla's capital assets can be found in note 3 on pages 30-31 of

this report.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had a total bonded debt of $6,530,000, all of which

comprises bonded debt backed by the full faith and credit of the government.

Outstanding Debt at Year End

Bonds Payable
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
General obligation refunding $ 5,248,339 $ 5,569,830 $ 1,281,661 $ 1,360,170 $ 6,530,000 $ 6,930,000
Total $ 5248339 $5569,830 $ 1,281,661 $ 1,360,170 $ 6,530,000 $ 6,930,000

The City's General Obligation Refunding Bonds ratings are listed below.

Standard's & Poor's

General Obligation Refunding AA

Additional information on the City of Ovilla's long term-debt can be found in note 3 on pages 32-33 of

this report.




ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The FY2013-14 Budget calls for adopting the Effective Tax Rate (ETR) of $0.6719 per $100 of
assessed property valuation. The operating tax rate is projected to increase from $0.4975 to $0.5019
and the debt rate will remain at $0.17. The effective tax rate is an increase of $0.0044 over the tax
rate of $0.6675 for FY2012-13. The total combined budget of $4,566,491 represents an increase of
$153,675, or 3.37% over the FY2012-13 Amended Budget of $4,412,816, and an increase of
$149,108, or 3.27% over FY2012-2013 Adopted Budget.

According to the final information received from both Ellis County and Dallas County Appraisal
Districts, the total assessed property value for 2013 equals $248,160,741 and includes $1,720,990
of new property coming on-line. Additionally, existing property values decreased by $1,019,708 or
.514%. This decrease in property values provided a deficit of $6,851 in property tax revenue for the
City. Total exemptions account for $49,366,739 in assessed property value, which equates to
$331,695 in lost property tax revenue. Of this amount, $289,722 is lost due to the over 65 tax freeze.

Other revenues are projected to increase slightly in FY2014. Sales tax collections are projected up
by 11% over FY2013 and building permits and related fees are projected at a modest increase based
on an estimated twelve (12) new housing permits.

The City’s annual debt service, including principal of $355,000 and interest of $217,425 is $572,425.
The outstanding debt reflects $7,415,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds payable through
2029.

The focus of this year's budget is to continue to provide quality services to our citizens. The main
emphasis will be on road and street improvements including Cockrell Hill Road, Westmoreland
South, Thorntree, East Highland, and Bryson Lane. The budget includes funding for a City-Wide
Strategic Plan and an Employee Compensation and Classification Study.

The budget includes cost increases to the Emergency Transport Services Contract, the Dispatch
Contract, the Wastewater Treatment Contract, and to employee health insurance premiums. The
increase to the wholesale cost of water will impact the City’s water customer base rate by $0.64 per
month. The budget includes a merit increase based on performance of up to 3%. Assistant Fire Chief
Brancato accepted the position of Fire Chief leaving the Assistant Fire Chief position vacant. There
were no new positions authorized in this budget.

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those with
an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in

this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Office of the
City Secretary, 105 South Cockrell Hill Rd., Ovilla, Texas 75154.
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables (net of allowance for
uncollectibles)
Due from other governments
Due from primary government
Inventories
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable
Depreciable (net of accumulated
depreciation)
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other current
liabilities
Accrued payroll payable
Accrued interest payable
Due to other governments
Due to component unit
Customer deposits payable
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:

Public safety

Cultural and recreational

Debt service

Infrastructure improvements
Unrestricted

Total net position

CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2013

Component Units

Ovilla 4B Ovilla

Primary Government Economic Municipal

Governmental  Business-type Development Development
Activities Activities Total Corporation District

$ 1991166 $ 891,585 $2882751 §$ - 3 -
4,653 1,145 5,798 - -
99,183 250,032 349,215 - 5,132
1,730 - 1,730 - -
- - - 325,123 65,648
- 16,597 16,597 - -
- 235,959 235,959 - -
- 4,855 4,855 - -
147,035 101,440 248,475 - -
1,698,122 2,742,918 4,441,040 - -
3,941,889 4,244,531 8,186,420 325,123 70,780
70,202 193,606 263,808 - -
27,271 7,579 34,850 - -
21,844 5,334 27,178 - -
6,675 - 6,675 - -
390,771 - 390,771 - -
- 45,630 45,630 - -
326,169 85,235 411,404 - -
5,068,722 1,238,963 6,307,685 - -
5,911,654 1,676,347 7,488,001 - -
(3,508,888) 1,666,957  (1,841,931) - -
26,288 - 26,288 - -
40,980 - 40,980 - -
110,086 - 110,086 - -
- 109,575 109,575 - -
1,361,769 891,652 2,253,421 325,123 70,780
$ (1,969,765) $ 2,668,184 $ 698419 $ 325123 $ 70,780

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2013
Other Total
Debt Governmental Governmental
General Service Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $1,838,419 $ 109,804 3 42943 $ 1,991,166
Investments 4,653 - - 4,653
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 94,659 4,524 - 99,183
Due from other governments 1,730 - - 1,730
Total assets $1,939,461 $ 114,328 $ 42,943 $ 2,096,732
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 70202 $ - % - $ 70,202
Accrued payroll payable 27,271 - - 27,271
Due to other governments 6,675 - - 6,675
Due to component unit 390,771 - - 390,771
Total liabilities 494,919 - - 494,919
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue-property tax 12,414 4,242 - 16,656
Total deferred inflows of resources 12,414 4,242 - 16,656
FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:
Public safety 10,591 - 15,697 26,288
Cultural and recreational 13,734 - 27,246 40,980
Debt service - 110,086 - 110,086
Unassigned 1,407,803 - - 1,407,803
Total fund balances 1,432,128 110,086 42,943 1,685,157
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and fund balances $1,939461 $ 114,328 $ 42,943
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are
not reported in the funds. 1,845,157
Interest payable on long-term debt does not require current financial resources. Therefore,
interest payable is not reported as a liability in governmental funds balance sheet. (21,844)
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred in the funds. 16,656
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds balance sheet.
Due within one year $  (326,169)
Due in more than one year (5,068,722) (5,394,891)
Net position of governmental activities $ (1,969,765)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Year Ended September 30, 2013

Other Total
Debt Governmental Governmental
General Service Funds Funds
REVENUES
Taxes:
Property $ 1244689 $ 425538 § - $ 1,670,227
Sales 221,114 - - 221,114
Franchise 149,703 - - 149,703
Licenses and permits 71,939 - - 71,939
Fines and forfeitures 56,125 - - 56,125
Charges for current services 471,498 - - 471,498
Revenues from use of money and property 6,499 729 37 7,265
Other 136,410 - 7,991 144,401
Intergovernmental 339 - - 339
Contributions and donations 3,000 - 15,381 18,381
Total revenues 2,361,316 426,267 23,409 2,810,992
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 383,476 - - 383,476
Public safety 1,336,972 - 8,957 1,345,929
Streets 326,402 - - 326,402
Cultural and recreational 20,478 - 3,000 23,478
Solid waste 199,979 - - 199,979
Debt service:
Principal retirement - 321,491 - 321,491
Interest and fiscal charges - 181,480 - 181,480
Total expenditures 2,267,307 502,971 11,957 2,782,235
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures 94,009 (76,704) 11,452 28,757
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of capital assets 38,850 - - 38,850
Transfers in 98,947 39,856 - 138,803
Total other financing sources (uses) 137,797 39,856 - 177,653
Net change in fund balances 231,806 (36,848) 11,452 206,410
Fund balances-beginning of year, as restated 1,200,322 146,934 31,491 1,378,747
Fund balances-end of year $ 1,432,128 $ 110,086 $ 42943 $ 1,585,157

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended September 30, 2013

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (page 13) are different because:
Net change in fund balance-total governmental funds (page 15) $ 206,410

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the government-
wide statement of activities and changes in net assets, the cost of those assets is allocated
over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount of capital
outlay recorded as capital assets in the current period. 113,150

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the government-wide statement of
activities and changes in net assets, but they do not require the use of current financial
resources. Therefore, depreciation expense is not reported as expenditure in governmental
funds. (267,756)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds) provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the
current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any
effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas the amounts are
deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these
differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Bond principal repayments $ 321,491
Amortization of bond discount (773)
Amortization of bond premium 7,162 327,880

Payment of compensated absences is reported as expenditures in the governmental funds
when actually paid. However, on the government-wide statement of changes in net assets
compensated absences are expensed as they are accrued. Change in the compensated
absences liability. 47

Some revenues will not be collected for several months after the city's fiscal year end.
These are not considered "available" revenues in the governmental funds until received.
Change in amount deferred on Fund statements. (1,826)

Accrued interest expense on long-term debt is reported in the government-wide statement
of activities and changes in net assets, but does not require the use of current financial
resources; therefore, accrued interest expense is not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. Change in accrued interest. 804

Change in net position of governmental activities (page 13) $ 372,056

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
September 30, 2013

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)
Inventory
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Total restricted assets
Capital assets (net, where applicable of accumulated depreciation)
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll payable
Accrued interest payable
Compensated absences
Customer deposits payable
Bonds payable
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds payable
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for infrastructure improvements
Unrestricted
Total net position

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Business-type
Activities - Enterprise
(Water and Sewer)
Fund

$ 891,585
1,145

250,032

16,597

1,159,359

235,959
4,855

240,814
2,844,358

3,085,172

4,244,531

193,606
7,579
5,334

15,558
45,630
69,677

337,384

1,238,963

1,238,963

1,576,347

1,666,957
109,575
891,652

$ 2,668,184




CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
Year Ended September 30, 2013

Business-type
Activities - Enterprise
(Water and Sewer)

Fund
OPERATING REVENUES
Water sales $ 891,686
Sewer service charge 174,797
Impact fees 4,358
Infrastructure improvement fees 58,123
Miscellaneous 51,767
Total operating revenues 1,180,731
OPERATING EXPENSES
Water administration 125,305
Water expenses 578,381
Sewer expenses 286,476
Depreciation 179,813
Total operating expenses 1,169,975
Operating income 10,756
NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings 3,150
Interest and fiscal charges (42,377)
Total nonoperating revenue (expenses) {39,227)
Income before transfers (28,471)
Transfer out (138,803)
Change in net position (167,274)
Total net position - beginning, as restated 2,835,458
Total net position - ending $ 2,668,184

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
Year Ended September 30, 2013

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers to other funds
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Principal paid on bond maturities
Interest and fiscal charges paid on bonds
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments
Net cash provided (used) by investing aclivities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in inventory
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits
Total adjustments
Net cash provided by operating activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Business-type
Activities - Enterprise
(Water and Sewer)
Fund

$ 1,158,241
(544,669)
(296,901)

316,671

(138,803)

(138,803)

(78,509)
(44,246)

(146,296)

3,150

3,150

34,722

1,098,822

$ 1,133,544

$ 10,756

179,813

(30,865)
4,190

144,402
8,375

305,915

$ 316,671




CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2013
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting entity

The City of Ovilla, Texas (the “City”) is a general law municipality and was incorporated in 1963. The
accompanying financial statements present the City and its component units (traditionally separate
reporting entities), for which the City is considered to be financially accountable. The City (the
primary government) is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s
governing board and (1) is able to impose its will on the organization or (2) there is a potential for the
organization to provide specific financial benefit to or impose specific financial burden on the City.
Additionally, the City is required to consider other organizations for which the nature and significance
of their relationship with the City are such that exclusion would cause the City's financial statements
to be misleading or incomplete. The financial statements are formatted to allow the user to clearly
distinguish between the primary government and its component units.

Discretely Presented Component Units—The Corporation and District described below are included
in the City's reporting entity because the City appoints the governing body and the Corporation and
District are fiscally dependent on the City. The Corporation and District are reported as discretely
presented component units since the governing body is not substantively the same as the governing
body of the City, and it provides services to the citizens of Ovilla and the surrounding area as
opposed to only the primary government. To emphasize that they are legally separate from the City,
they are reported in a separate column in the financial statements. Fund information for the
component units may be found in the supplementary information in this report. Separate financial
statements for the Corporation and District are not issued.

The Ovilla 4B Economic Development Corporation was created under Section 4B of the
Development Corporation Act of 1979, as amended, Article 5190.6, Vernon’s Texas civil statutes,
as amended, and is responsible for collecting and disbursing the one-half percent sales tax to be
used for economic development within the City. The members of the Corporation’s board are
appointed by the City. The Corporation is presented as a governmental fund type and has a
September 30 year-end.

The Ovilla Municipal Development District was created in accordance with Chapter 377 of the
Texas Local Government Code and is responsible for collecting and disbursing the one-quarter
percent sales tax to be used for municipal development within the City. The members of the
District's board are appointed by the City. The District is presented as a governmental fund type
and has a September 30 year-end.
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CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2013
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

B. Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
changes in net position) report information of the primary government and its component units.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and
charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment. Certain indirect costs have been included as part of the program
expenses reported for the various functional activities. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other
items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year
for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current
period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected
within sixty days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, inventories of materials and supplies are
considered expenditures when used and debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related
to accumulated unpaid sick pay, are recorded only when payment is due.
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CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2013
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation {continued)

Property taxes, when levied for, intergovernmental revenues, when eligibility requirements are met,
solid waste collection fees, interest and special assessments associated with the current fiscal year
are all considered to be susceptible to accrual (measurable) and so have been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period, if available. Available has been defined as received within sixty
days of the fiscal year end. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available
only when cash is received by the government.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The debt service fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal
and interest and related costs on long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds.

The City reports the following major proprietary fund:

The water and sewer fund accounts for the activities of the sewage pumping stations and
collection systems, and the water distribution system.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the city’s water and sewer
function and various other functions of the City. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct
costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the water and sewer enterprise fund are charges to customers for sales and services
and the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the system.
Operating expenses for the water and sewer fund include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
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CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2013
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation (continued)

Deposits and Investments -

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the City’'s cash and cash equivalents are considered
to be cash on hand, demand deposits, certificates of deposit and short-term investments with original
maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

investments for the City are reported at fair value.

D. Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity

Receivables and payables -

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the
end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of
interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans).
All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.” Any
residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are
reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance
reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for
appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources.

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. Trade
accounts receivables in excess of ninety days comprise the trade accounts receivable allowance for
uncollectibles. The property tax receivable allowance is equal to .2 percent of taxes levied each
year.

The City's property tax is levied each October 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January
1 for all real and personal property. Appraised values are established by the Ellis Appraisal District
as market value and assessed at 100% of appraised value. Property taxes attach as an enforceable
lien on property as of January 1. The Ellis County Tax Assessor/Collector bills and collects the City’s
property taxes, which are due October 1. Full payment can be made prior to the next January 31 to
avoid penalty and interest charges. Over time substantially all property taxes are collected.

23




CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2013
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity (continued)

Inventory -

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-inffirst-out (FIFO) method. Inventories of
governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Restricted assets —

Certain proceeds of the City’s enterprise fund bonds are classified as restricted assets on the
statement of net assets because they are maintained in separate bank accounts and their use is
limited by applicable bond covenants. The “bond construction” account is used to report those
proceeds of bond issuances that are restricted for use in construction. The "infrastructure impact
fees" account is used to segregate resources accumulated for infrastructure improvements.

Capital assets -

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems and lighting systems), are
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide
financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of
more than $2,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased of constructed. Donated capital assets are
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is
included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed, net of interest earned on the
invested proceeds over the same period.

Property, plant, equipment and infrastructure are depreciated using the straight line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 30-40
Improvements 7-40
Machinery and equipment 3-15
Infrastructure 15-40
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CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2013
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity (continued)

Deferred inflows of resources -

The statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow
of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has only one type of item, which arises only under a
modified accrual basis of accounting, that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the
item, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. This amount is
deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amount becomes available.

Compensated absences —

It is the government’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation pay
benefits. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund
financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have
matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements. Vacation leave shall be
taken annually.

Long-term obligations -

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets.
Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or
discount. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are
reported as expenses.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts,
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is
reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other
financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.
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CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2013
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity (continued)

Net position -

Net position represent the difference between assets, and liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources on the government-wide financial statements. Net position is classified in the following
categories:

Net investment in capital assets —This amount consists of capital assets net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt that is attributed to the acquisition, construction or
improvement of the assets.

Restricted net position —This amount is restricted by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments.

Unrestricted net position —This amount is the net position that does not meet the definition of “net
investment in capital assets” or “restricted net position”.

Fund Equity -

The governmental fund financials present fund balance categorized based on the nature and extent
of the constraints placed on the specific purposes for which a government’s funds may be spent.
The following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints:

Restricted fund balance —amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as
grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or by
enabling legislation.

Unassigned fund balance—amounts that represent fund balance that has not been assigned to
other funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within
the general fund. Other governmental funds might report a negative balance in this classification,
as the result of overspending for specific purposes for which amounts had been restricted,
committed, or assigned. Positive balances are reported only in the general fund.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s policy to

use externally restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources - committed, assigned, and
unassigned, in order as needed.
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CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2013
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity (continued)

The City's goal is to maintain an unassigned fund balance in the general fund equal to twenty-five
percent of budgeted expenditures less budgeted capital equipment items and any amounts budgeted
as reserves.

E. New GASB Pronouncement

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has issued several new pronouncements that the
City has reviewed for application to their accounting and reporting.

GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position, is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2011. This
standard provides financial reporting guidance for deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources. The City has implemented this reporting for the year ended September 30,
2013. The components of net position were renamed to reflect the requirements of this statement.

GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, is effective for
financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2012. This statement improves
financial reporting by clarifying the appropriate use of the financial statement elements deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources to ensure consistency in financial reporting.
The City has implemented this statement in the year ended September 30, 2013. As a result, prior
year “deferred charges” of $310,770 have been expensed in the prior period adjustment explained in
Note 4 (H).

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary information

The annual budget is adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for
the debt service fund. Annual budgets for the general and water and sewer funds are prepared on
the budgetary basis of accounting All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. The legal level
of budgetary control is the fund level.

B. Compliance with finance related legal and contractual provisions

The City has no material violations of finance related legal and contractual provisions, including the
Texas Public Funds Investment Act.
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CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2013
NOTE 3 — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. Deposits and investments

Deposits — State statutes require that all deposits in financial institutions be fully collateralized by
U.S. Government obligations or obligations of Texas and its agencies that have a market value of not
less than the principal amount of the deposits. The City’s deposits were fully insured or collateralized
as required by State statutes at September 30, 2013. At year end, the bank balance of the City’s
deposits was $3,270,124. Of the bank balance, $743,633 was covered by federal depository
insurance and the remaining balance, $2,526,491, was covered by collateral pledged in the City’s
name. The collateral was held in the City's name by the safekeeping department of the pledging
bank’s agent and had a fair value of approximately $3,718,000.

Investments — Public funds of the City of Ovilla may be invested in the following obligations: (1)
obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities, excluding mortgage-backed
securities, (2) direct obligations of the State of Texas, or its agencies and instrumentalities, (3) other
obligations which are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by, or backed by the full faith and credit
of, the State of Texas or the United States or their respective agencies and instrumentalities,
excluding mortgage-related securities, (4) fully insured or collateralized certificates of deposits at a
national or state bank with FDIC membership, domiciled within the State of Texas, (5) investment
pools meeting the criteria established by section 2256.016 of the Texas Government Code, (6)
repurchase agreements, reverse repurchase agreements, bankers’ acceptances, and commercial
paper provided these instruments are authorized for the City to the extent that they are contained in
the portfolios of approved public funds investment pools in which the City invests, and (7) regulated
no-load money market mutual funds.

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the
holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized
statistical rating organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by the Public Funds
Investment Act, and the actual rating as of year end.

Minimum Rating as
, Fair Legal of Year
Investment Type Value Rating End
TexPool 3 308 N/A AAAmM
TexSTAR 10,345 N/A AAAM

$ 10,653
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CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2013
NOTE 3 — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

A. Deposits and investments (continued)

The City currently invests in 2a7-like pools. The City’s investment in TexPool and TexSTAR are not
categorized because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form.
The Texas Local Government Investment Pool (TexPool), was created under the Interlocal
Cooperation Act, Texas Government Code Ann. Ch. 791 and the Texas Government Code Ann. Ch.
2256. The Texas Treasury Safekeeping Trust Company (the Trust) is trustee of TexPool and is a
limited purpose trust company authorized pursuant to Texas Government Code Ann. Section
404.103 for which the Texas State Comptroller is the sole officer, director and shareholder. The
advisory board of TexPool is composed of members appointed pursuant to the requirements of the
Public Funds Investment Act, Texas Government Code Ann. Ch. 22586.

The daily operations of TexPool are managed by Federated Investors under a contract with the State
Comptroller of Public Accounts. The state comptroller maintains oversight responsibility for TexPool
including the ability to influence operations, designation of management and accountability for fiscal
matters.

TexSTAR is co-administered by First Southwest Asset Management, Inc. and JPMorgan Chase, who
provide investment services, participant services and marketing. Custodial, transfer agency, fund
accounting and depository services are provided by JP Morgan Chase Bank and/or its subsidiary
J.P. Morgan Investor Services Co.

B. Receivables

Receivables as of year end for the government’s individual major funds and nonmajor funds in the
aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Debt Water and
General Service Sewer Total

Receivables:

Taxes $ 88,822 $ 10,329 § - % 99,151

Accounts 20,265 - 258,459 278,724
Gross receivables 109,087 10,329 258,459 377,875
Less: allowance for

uncollectibles (14,428) (5,805) (8,427) (28,660)
Net total receivables $ 94659 $ 4524 $ 250,032 $ 349,215
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CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2013

NOTE 3 — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

C. Capital assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2013, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 3 92,685 3 54350 $ - $ 147,035
Total capital assets not being depreciated 92,685 54,350 - 147,035
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 317,819 - - 317,819
Machinery and equipment 2,816,525 58,800 (112,025) 2,763,300
Infrastructure 1,116,210 - - 1,116,210
Totals capital assets being depreciated 4,250,554 58,800 (112,025) 4,197,329
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (132,790) (10,594) - (143,384)
Machinery and equipment (1,989,212) (221,488) 105,372 (2,105,328)
Infrastructure (214,821) (35,674) - (250,495)
Total accumulated depreciation (2,336,823) (267,756) 105,372 (2,499,207)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 1,913,731 (208,956) (6,653) 1,698,122
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 2006416 % (154,608) $ (6,653) $ 1,845,157
Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 86,700 $ - % - $ 86,700
Construction in progress - - 14,740 14,740
Total capital assets not being depreciated 86,700 - 14,740 101,440
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 85,084 - - 85,084
Improvements 4,849,490 6,702 - 4,856,192
Machinery and equipment 326,753 2,099 - 328,852
Total capital assets being depreciated 5,261,327 8,801 - 5,270,128
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (20,634) (2,331) - (22,965)
Improvements (2,115,289) (163,580} - (2,278,869)
Machinery and equipment (211,474) (13,902) - (225,376)
Total accumulated depreciation (2,347,397) (179,813) - (2,527,210)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 2,913,930 (171,012) - 2,742,918
Business-type capital assets, net $ 3000630 $ (171,012) $ 14,740 $ 2,844,358
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CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2013
NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

C. Capital assets (continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 14,380
Public safety 201,478
Streets 50,181
Cultural and recreational 1,717
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 267,756

Business-type activities:

Water and sewer $ 179,813

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 179,813
D. Interfund receivables, payables and transfers
Interfund transfers:

Transfer In:
Debt

Transfer out: General Service Total
Water and Sewer $ 98,947 $ 39,856 $ 138,803

$ 98947 $ 39856 $ 138,803

Transfers were primarily used to move funds from the Water and Sewer Fund to the Debt Service
Fund for the payment of bonds and from the Water and Sewer Fund to the General Fund for
operations.
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CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2013

NOTE 3 — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

E. Long-term debt

General Obligation Refunding Bonds -

The City issues general obligation refunding bonds to provide funds for the refunding of prior
outstanding certificates of obligation. General obligation refunding bonds have been issued for both
governmental and business-type activities. General obligation bonds are direct obligations and

pledge the full faith and credit of the government.

General obligation refunding bonds currently outstanding and reported as liabilities of the City’s
governmental activities are:

Maturity Interest Year-end
Series Issue Amount Date Rate Balances
2011 $ 5,959,638 8/15/2029 2%-4% $ 5,248,339

General obligation refunding bonds currently outstanding and reported as liabilities of the City's
business-type activities are:

Maturity Interest Year-end
Series Issue Amount Date Rate Balances
2011 $ 1,455,362 8/15/2029 2%-4% $ 1,281,661

Annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows -

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
General Obligation General Obligation
Year Ending Refunding Bonds Refunding Bonds

September 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2014 $ 285323 $ 174,751 $ 69,677 $ 42,675
2015 293,360 169,045 71,640 41,281
2016 301,398 163,178 73,602 39,848
2017 301,398 157,150 73,602 38,376
2018 313,454 149,614 76,546 36,536
2019-2023 1,695,865 598,536 414,135 146,164
2024-2028 2,053,523 253,978 501,477 62,022
2029 4,018 161 982 39

$ 5,248,339 §$ 1,666,413 $ 1,281,661 $ 406,941
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CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2013
NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

E. Long-term debt (continued)

Changes in long-term liabilities —

Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2013, was as follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Primary Government
Governmental activities:
Bonds payable:
General obligation
refunding bonds 5569,830 $ - % (321,491) $ 5,248339 $ 285,323
Less deferred amounts:
For issuance discount (9,665) - 773 (8,892) -
For issuance premium 121,760 - (7,162) 114,598 -
Total bonds payable 5,681,925 - (327,880) 5,354,045 285,323
Compensated absences 40,893 26,610 (26,657) 40,846 40,846
Governmental activity
Long-term liabilities 5722818 $ 26610 $ (354,537) $ 5,394,891 $ 326,169
Business-type activities:
Bonds payable:
General obligation
refunding bonds 1,360,170 $ - % (78,509) $ 1,281,661 $ 69,677
Less deferred amounts:
For issuance discount (1,083) - 77 (1,006) -
For issuance premium 29,734 - (1,749) 27,985 -
Total bonds payable 1,388,821 - (80,181) 1,308,640 69,677
Compensated absences 16,712 3,767 (4,921) 15,558 15,558
Business-type activity
Long-term liabilities 1,405,533 § 3,767 $ (85,102) $ 1,324,198 $ 85,235

General obligation refunding bonds issued for governmental activity purposes are liquidated by the
debt service fund. General obligation refunding bonds issued for business-type activities are repaid
from those activities.

Governmental compensated absences will be liquidated by the general fund. Business-type
compensated absences will be liquidated by those activities.
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CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2013
NOTE 3 — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

F. Restricted assets

The balances of the restricted asset accounts in the proprietary fund are as follows:

Bond construction account $ 131,239
Infrastructure impact fees 109,575
$ 240,814

NOTE 4 — OTHER INFORMATION

A. Risk management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City maintains
commercial insurance coverage covering each of those risks of loss. Management believes such
coverage is sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses to the City. Settled claims have
not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

B. Commitments

The City has entered into a memorandum of agreement with the City of Dallas, Texas to purchase
treated water for a term of thirty years, expiring in 2039. The City pays for water based on the
volume received at a flat rate as determined under the contract. The City of Dallas agrees to provide
potable water to meet volume and demand requirements of the City. Delivery of potable water are
subject to and limited to available system supply and system deliverability, as determined by the
Director of Water Utilities of Dallas. If the City ceases to take water from the City of Dallas because
other surface water supplies have been developed or acquired, the City shall for five years or the
balance of this contract, whichever is less, remain liable for demand charges at the billing level in
effect at such cessation.

Actual payments for the year ended September 30, 2013 were $329,676.

The City has entered into a contract with the Trinity River Authority of Texas - Red Oak Creek
Regional Wastewater System to obtain wastewater treatment services, expiring in 2017. In the
contract, the Authority agreed to acquire and construct a regional wastewater treatment system to
serve the City and other contractual parties, in the area of the watershed or drainage basin of Red
Oak Creek, being a tributary of the Trinity River, and located in Ellis and Dallas Counties, Texas.
The Trinity River Authority (TRA) is a governmental agency, which is controlled by directors
appointed by the governor.
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NOTE 4 — OTHER INFORMATION

B. Commitments (continued)

The City is responsible for a proportionate share of the system’s annual operation, maintenance and
debt service costs for the term of the contract. These costs are determined annually and are payable
in monthly instaliments. The estimated future monthly payment due under the contract at September
30, 2013 totaled $17,995.

Actual payments for the year ended September 30, 2013 were $179,418.

The payments fo be received from the City of Ovilla, Texas are used as collateral for the bonds issued
by TRA to construct the facility.

Complete separate financial statements for the Trinity River Authority may be obtained at Trinity River
Authority of Texas, 5300 South Collins, P.O. Box 60, Arlington, Texas 76004.

The City entered into a contract with Progressive Waste Solutions of TX, Inc. that grants the exclusive
right to operate and maintain the collection, transportation and recycling or disposal of municipal solid
waste. The contract will commence on December 1, 2013 and continue for a period of five years with
two one-year renewal options.

C. Contingencies

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the
applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor, cannot
be determined at this time although the government expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

D. Texas Municipal Retirement System

Plan Description -

The City provides pension benefits for all of its eligible employees through a non-traditional, joint
contributory, hybrid defined benefit plan in the state-wide Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS),
an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system. The plan provisions that have been
adopted by the City are within the options available in the governing state statutes of TMRS.

TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information (RSI) for TMRS; the report also provides detailed
explanations of the contributions, benefits and actuarial methods and assumptions used by the
System. This report may be obtained from TMRS’ website at www. TMRS.com.
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D. Texas Municipal Retirement System (continued)

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options available in the
state statutes governing TMRS. Plan provisions for the City were as follows:

Plan Year 2012 Plan Year 2013
Employee deposit rate 7.0% 7.0%
Matching ratio (city to employee) 2to1 2to1
Years required for vesting 5 5
Service retirement eligibility (expressed as age / years of
service) 60/5, 0/20 60/5, 0/20
Updated service credit 100% Repeating, 100% Repeating,

Transfers Transfers

Annuity increase (to retirees) 0% of CPI 0% of CPI
Contributions -

Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined annually by the
actuary, using the Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method. This rate consists of the normal cost
contribution rate and the prior service cost contribution rate, which is calculated to be a level percent of
payroll from year to year. The normal cost contribution rate finances the portion of an active member’s
projected benefit allocated annually; the prior service contribution rate amortizes the unfunded
(overfunded) actuarial liability (asset) over the applicable period for that city. Both the normal cost and
prior service contribution rates include recognition of the projected impact of annually repeating
benefits, such as Updated Service Credits and Annuity Increases.

The City contributes to the TMRS Plan at an actuarially determined rate, which for 2013 and 2012 was
5.72% and 5.02%, respectively. Both the employees and the City make contributions monthly. Since
the City needs to know its contribution rate in advance for budgetary purposes, there is a one-year
delay between the actuarial valuation that serves as the basis for the rate and the calendar year when
the rate goes into effect. The annual pension cost and net pension obligation/(asset) are as follows:

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 50,623
Interest on Net Pension Obligation -
Adjustment to the ARC -
Annual Pension Cost (APC) 50,623

Contributions Made (50,623)
Increase (decrease) in net pension obligation -
Net Pension Obligation/(Asset), beginning of year

Net Pension Obligation/(Asset), end of year $
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NOTE 4 — OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

D. Texas Municipal Retirement System (continued)

Six year historical trend information is as follows:

Fiscal Annual Actual Percentage Net Pension
Year Pension  Contribution of APC Obligation/

Ending Cost (APC) Made Contributed (Asset)
2008 $ 55804 $ 55804 100% $ -
2009 48,420 48,420 100% -
2010 49,069 49,069 100% -
2011 51,525 51,625 100% -
2012 48,607 48,607 100% -
2013 50,623 50,623 100% -

The required contribution rates for the year ended September 30, 2013 were determined as part of the
December 31, 2010 and 2011 actuarial valuations. Additional information as of the latest actuarial
valuation, December 31, 2012, also follows:

Valuation Date
Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method

GASB 25 Equivalent Single
Amortization Period

Amortization Period for new
Gains/Losses

Asset Valuation Method

Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment Rate of Return*
Projected Salary Increases™

* Includes Inflation at
Cost-of-Living Adjustments

12/31/2010
Projected Unit Credit
Level Percent
of Payroll
23.8 years;
closed period
25 years

10-year Smoothed
Market

7.0%
Varies by
age and service
3.0%

0%

12/31/2011
Projected Unit Credit
Level Percent
of Payroll
23.8 years;
closed period
25 years

10-year Smoothed
Market

7.0%

Varies by
age and service

3.0%
0%

12/31/2012
Projected Unit Credit
Level Percent
of Payroll
23.1 years;
closed period
25 years

10-year Smoothed
Market

7.0%
Varies by
age and service
3.0%

0%

Funded Status and Funding Progress — The schedule of funding progress, presenting multi-year trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liability of benefits, is as follows:

Actuarial UAAL as a

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Valuation Value of Liabitity Funded AAL Covered  of Covered

Date Assets (AAL) Ratio (UAAL) Payroll Payroll

12/31/2007 $ 590,205 $ 706,706 83.5% $ 116,501 $ 722,025 16.1%
12/31/2008 722,820 844,686 85.6% 121,866 854,190 14.3%
12/31/2009 857,209 976,704 87.8% 119,495 845,619 14.1%
12/31/2010 1,274,261 1,495,042 85.2% 220,781 895,775 24.6%
12/31/2011 1,417,692 1,641,208 86.4% 223,616 891,271 25.1%
12/31/2012 1,693,975 1,739,542 91.6% 145,567 914,994 15.9%
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D. Texas Municipal Retirement System (continued)

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the
future.

Actuarial calculations are based on the benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan in
effect at the time of each valuation, and reflect a long-term perspective. Consistent with that
perspective, actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to
reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets.

E. Texas Emergency Services Retirement System

Plan Description -

The Fire Fighter's Pension Commissioner is the administrator of the Texas Emergency Services
Retirement System (TESRS), a cost-sharing multiple employer pension system established and
administered by the State of Texas to provide pension benefits for emergency services personnel
who serve without significant monetary remuneration. TESRS is considered a component unit of the
State of Texas financial reporting entity and is included in the State’s financial reports as a pension
trust fund. At August 31, 2012 there were 188 member fire or emergency services departments
actively participating in TESRS. Eligible participants include volunteer emergency services personnel
who are members in good standing of a participating department.

At August 31, 2012, the pension system membership consisted of:

Retirees and Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits* 2,750
Terminated Participants Entitled to Benefits but Not Yet Receiving Them 2,252
Active Participants (Vested and Nonvested) 4,446

9,448

Senate Bill 411, 65th Legislature, Regular Session (1977), created TESRS and established the
applicable benefit provisions. The 79th Legislature, Regular Session (2005), recodified the provisions
and gave the TESRS Board of Trustees authority to establish vesting requirements, contribution
levels, benefit formulas, and eligibility requirements by board rule. The benefit provisions include
retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Members are 50% vested after the tenth
year of service, with the vesting percent increasing 10% for each of the next five years of service so
that a member becomes 100% vested with 15 years of service.
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E. Texas Emergency Services Retirement System (continued)

Upon reaching age 55, each vested member may retire and receive a monthly pension equal to his
vested percent multiplied by six times the governing body’s average monthly contribution over the
member’s years of qualified service. For years of service in excess of 15 years, this monthly benefit
is increased at the rate of 6.2% compounded annually.

On and off-duty death benefits and on-duty disability benefits are dependent on whether or not the
member was engaged in the performance of duties at the time of death or disability. Death benefits
include a lump sum amount and continuing monthly payments to a member’s surviving spouse and
dependent children.

Funding Policy -

Contribution provisions were originally established by S.B. 411, 65th Legislature, Regular Session
(1977) and were amended by board rule in 2006. No contributions are required by individual
members of participating departments. The governing bodies of participating departments are
required to contribute at least the minimum prescribed amount per month for each active member
and may contribute more. Additional contributions may be made by a governing body to pay for
granting credit for service before the department began participating in TESRS (prior service). The
State may also be required to make annual contributions up a limited amount to make TESRS
actuarially sound.

Contributions Required and Contributions Made -

The contribution requirement per active emergency services personnel member per month is not
actuarially determined. Rather, the minimum contribution provisions were set by board rule. For the
fiscal year ending August 31, 2012 total contributions (dues and prior service) of $3,517,455 were
paid into TESRS by the political subdivisions served by the member volunteer emergency services
personnel. The state did not appropriate any maximum state contribution for the fiscal years ending
August 31, 2012 and 2013. Total contributions made were equal to the contributions required by the
state statute and equal to the contributions required based on the August 31, 2012 actuarial
valuation.
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E. Texas Emergency Services Retirement System (continued)

The purpose of the biennial actuarial valuation is to test the adequacy of the contribution
arrangement to determine if it is adequate to pay the benefits that are promised. The actuarial
valuation as of August 31, 2012 revealed the adequacy of the expected contributions from the
political subdivisions (dues and prior service contributions) together with the actual state
appropriations for the fiscal year ending August 31, 2013 ($528,538 to help pay for the System’s
administrative expenses) and with the assumed continuation of legislative appropriations of (1) the
maximum state contribution amount in future years for up to 30 years as is necessary for the System
to have a 30-year amortization period, and (2) approximately $530,000 each year to help pay for the
System’s administrative expenses.

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial
Accrued
Actuarial Actuarial Liability L Unfunded Total UAAL Per
Valuation Value of (AAL) AAL Funded Members Member
Date Assets - Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Covered Covered
08/31/2006 $42,268,305 $ 58,082,828 $ 15,814,523 72.8% 8061 3 1,962
08/31/2007 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
08/31/2008 2 60,987,157 64,227,341 3,240,184 95.0% 8,254 393
08/31/2009 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
08/31/2010 > 64,113,803 81,264,230 17,150,427 78.9% 8,644 1,984
08/31/2011 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
08/31/2012 67,987,487 101,856,042 33,868,555 66.7% 9,448 3,585

Notes:
' The actuarial accrued liability is based upon the entry age actuarial cost method.
2 Changes in actuarial assumptions were reflected in this valuation.

® Changes in actuarial assumption and method were reflected in this valuation.
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E. Texas Emergency Services Retirement System (continued)

Six-year trend information is as follows:

Annual
Fiscal Required Percentage
Year Contributions Actual of ARC
Ending (ARC) Contributions Contributed
08/31/2007 $ 3,162,742 ' § 3,162,742 ° 100%
08/31/2008 3,160,764 2 11,239,339 ° 356%
08/31/2009 2,608,271 2 2,698,271 100%
08/31/2010 2,875,103 ° 2,875,103 100%
08/31/2011 3,125,329 ° 3,125,329 100%
08/31/2012 4423898 ** 3,517,455 N/A
' Based on the August 31, 2006 actuarial valuation.
2 Based onthe August 31, 2008 actuarial valuation.
® Based on the revised August 31, 2010 actuarial valuation.
* Includes a requested state contribution of $906,443.
® Includes a state contribution of $709,072.
® Includes a state contribution of $8,800,000.
Valuation Date 8/31/2010
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age

Amortization Method
Amortization Period
Asset Valuation Method

Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment Rate of Return*

Projected Salary Increases
* Includes Inflation at
Cost-of-Living Adjustments

Level dollar, open

30 years

Market value smoothed by a 5-

year
method
corridor

7.75%

deferred  recognition
with a 80%/120%
on market value

per vyear, net of

investment expenses
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N/A
3.50%
None

8/31/2012
Entry Age
Level dollar, open
Infinity
Market value smoothed by a
5-year deferred recognition
method with a 80%/120%
corridor on market value
7.75% per year, net of
investment expenses
N/A
3.50%
None
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F. Postemployment Benefits

Program Description:

The City also participates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group-term life
insurance plan operated by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) known as the
Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBF). The City elected, by ordinance, to provide group-term
life insurance coverage to both current and retired employees. The City may terminate coverage
under and discontinue participation in the SDBF by adopting an ordinance before November 1 of any
year to be effective the following January 1.

TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information (RSI) for TMRS; the report also provides detailed
explanations of the contributions, benefits and actuarial methods and assumptions used by the
System. This report may be obtained from TMRS' website at www. TMRS.com.

The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal to the
employee's annual salary (calculated based on the employee's actual earnings, for the 12-month
period preceding the month of death); retired employees are insured for $7,500; this coverage is an
"other postemployment benefit," or OPEB.

The City contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an annual
actuarial valuation. The rate is equal to the cost of providing one-year term life insurance. The
funding policy for the SDBF program is to assure that adequate resources are available to meet all
death benefit payments for the upcoming year; the intent is not to pre-fund retiree term life insurance
during employees' entire careers.

The City's contributions to the TMRS SDBF for the years ended 2013 and 2012 were $1,464 and
$1,337, respectively, which equaled the required contributions each year.

Schedule of Contribution Rates

City's Contribution As a Percentage of Covered Payroll
Plan / Annual Actual Annual Actual Percentage
Calendar Required Contribution Required Contribution of ARC
Year Contribution Made Contribution Made Contributed
2008 $ 1,281 $ 1,281 0.15% 0.15% 100.0%
2009 1,268 1,268 0.15% 0.15% 100.0%
2010 1,440 1,440 0.19% 0.19% 100.0%
2011 1,344 1,344 0.15% 0.15% 100.0%
2012 1,337 1,337 0.15% 0.15% 100.0%
2013 1,464 1,464 0.16% 0.16% 100.0%
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G. Prior Period Adjustment

Corrections have been made to the governmental activities, business-type activities and discretely
presented component units beginning net position in the government-wide financial statements and
to the fund balance in the fund financial statements due changes in accounting principles and errors
in classification and recording financial transactions in the prior period, resulting in an
understatement/overstatement of assets, an understatement/overstatement of fund balance/net
position, an understatement/overstatement of revenues, and an understatement/overstatement of
expenses of the prior year. The change to the beginning net position as of October 1, 2012 is
summarized as follows:

Fund Financial Statements

Ovilla 4B Ovilla Government-wide
Economic Municipal Financial Statements
Development Development Governmental Component
Corporation District Activities Units
As previously recorded, October 1, 2012 $ 249,770  $ 45,028 § (1,801,770) $ -
Correct overstatement/understatement
of cash and cash equivalents (235,255) (41,664) (276,919) 276,919
Correct overstatement/understatement of receivables - (3,364) (3,364) 3,364
Correct understatement of due from
primary government (14,515) - - 14,515
To expense deferred charges as a result of a
change in accounting principles - - (245,253) -
Correct understatement of due to component units - - (14,515) -
Restated, October 1, 2012 $ - 3 - 8 (2,341,821) § 294,798
Effect of restatement on operations for the year
ended September 30, 2012 $ (71,525) $ (21,585) § (80,278) $ 93,110

Government-wide

Fund Financial
Financial Statements
Statements Business-type

Utility Operation Activities
As previously recorded, October 1, 2012 $ 2,900,974 $ 2,900,974
Correct overstatement of deferred charges (65,517) (65,517)
Restated, October 1, 2012 $ 2835457 § 2,835,457

Effect of restatement on operations for the year

ended September 30, 2012 $ 6,472 $ 6,472
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

General Fund

This supplementary schedule is included to supplement the basic financial statements as required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
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REVENUES
Taxes:

Property

Sales

Franchise
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Charges for current services
Revenues from use of money and property
Other
Intergovernmental
Contributions and donations

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Public safety:
Fire protection
Police protection
Municipal court
Code enforcement
Total public safety
Streets
Cultural and recreational
Solid waste
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of capital assets
Transfers in
Total other financing sources and uses
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
Year Ended September 30, 2013

Variance with

Actual Adjustments Actual Final Budget -
Budget Amounts GAAP Budget Budget Over (Under)
Original Final Basis Basis Basis Budget

$1,265,000 $1,226,150 $1,244,689 $ 963 $1,245652 $ 19,502
187,500 208,500 221,114 (3,060) 218,054 9,554
150,000 160,000 149,703 176 149,879 (10,121)
28,050 47,685 71,939 - 71,939 24,254
50,150 42,975 56,125 (4,777) 51,348 8,373
385,675 447,525 471,498 (17,760) 453,738 6,213
4,000 5,500 6,499 - 6,499 999
93,015 106,829 136,410 (13,464) 122,946 16,117
3,840 28 339 - 339 311
3,000 3,000 3,000 - 3,000 -
2,170,230 2,248,192 2,361,316 (37,922) 2,323,394 75,202
368,806 450,196 383,476 (1,563) 381,913 (68,283)
618,345 657,195 641,307 (3,519) 637,788 (19,407)
582,326 582,326 565,596 (3,602) 561,994 (20,332)
54,800 54,900 50,876 (161) 50,715 (4,185)
62,204 84,139 79,193 (81) 79,112 (5,027)
1,317,775 1,378,560 1,336,972 (7,363) 1,329,609 (48,951)
331,246 331,246 326,402 (571) 325,831 (5,415)
26,060 26,060 20,478 - 20,478 (5,582)
198,000 200,327 199,979 - 199,979 (348)
2,241,887 2,386,389 2,267,307 (9,497) 2,257,810 (128,579)
(71,657) (138,197) 94,009 (28,425) 65,584 203,781

- 38,850 38,850 - 38,850 -

116,301 116,301 98,947 17,354 116,301 -
116,301 155,151 137,797 17,354 155,151 -
44,644 16,954 231,806 (11,071) 220,735 203,781

- - 1,200,322 - 1,200,322 1,200,322

$ 44644 $ 16954 $1,432128 $ (11,071) $1,421,057 $ 1,404,103
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
restricted by law or administrative action to be used for specified purposes.

Fire Department Auxiliary - This fund is used to account for donations to the Fire Department
which in turn are spent on education, firefighter awards banquet and community services such as
National Night Out and Heritage Day.

Park Impact Fees - This fund is used to account for funds received from an impact fee assessed
through new building permits and is used to purchase new park equipment and make
improvements to our parks.

Police Department Special - This fund is used to account for donations to the Police Department
which in turn are spent on education, protective equipment, police awards and community services
such as National Night Out and Heritage Day.
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CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Total
Fire Park Police Nonmajor
Department  Impact  Department Governmental
Auxiliary Fees Special Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4067 $27246 $ 11630 $ 42 943
Total assets $ 4067 $27246 $ 11630 $ 42,943
LIABILITIES $ - $ - $ - % -
FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:
Public safety 4,087 - 11,630 15,697
Cultural and recreational - 27,246 - 27,246
Total fund balances 4,067 27,246 11,630 42,943
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 4067 $27246 $ 11630 $ 42,943
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CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended September 30, 2013

Total
Fire Park Police Nonmajor
Department  Impact Department Governmental
Auxiliary Fees Special Funds
REVENUES
Interest $ - % 37 % - 3 37
Other 297 7,694 - 7,991
Contributions and donations 1,330 - 14,051 15,381
Total revenues 1,627 7,731 14,051 23,409
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public safety 4,832 - 4,125 8,957
Cultural and recreational - 3,000 - 3,000
Total expenditures 4,832 3,000 4125 11,957
Net change in fund balances (3,205) 4,731 9,926 11,452
Fund balances - beginning 7,272 22,515 1,704 31,491
Fund balances - ending $ 4,067 $27246 $ 11630 $ 42,943
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DEBT SERVICE FUND

The debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for the payment of
principal and interest on general long-term debt.
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CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
DEBT SERVICE FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Variance with

Final Budget-
Budgeted Amounts Actual Over (Under)
Original Final Amounts Budget
REVENUES
Property tax $ 436,942 $429,242 $ 425538 $ (3,704)
Interest 1,000 800 729 (71)
Total revenues 437,942 430,042 426,267 (3,775)
EXPENDITURES
Debt service:
Principal on bonds 400,000 400,000 321,491 (78,509)
Interest and fiscal charges 225,925 225,925 181,480 (44,445)
Total expenditures 625,925 625,925 502,971 (122,954)
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures (187,983) (195,883) (76,704) 119,179
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 162,610 162,610 39,856 (122,754)
Total other financing sources (uses) 162,610 162,610 39,856 (122,754)
Net change in fund balance (25,373) (33,273) (36,848) (3,575)
Fund balance - beginning 36,873 36,873 146,934 110,061
Fund balance - ending $ 11,5600 $ 3,600 $ 110,086 $ 106,486
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Proprietary Fund

ENTERPRISE FUND

The City's water and sewer utility operations are accounted for in this fund.
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CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ENTERPRISE FUND - WATER AND SEWER

Year Ended September 30, 2013

Variance with

Actual Adjustments Actual Final Budget
Budget Amounts GAAP Budget Budget Over (Under)
Original Final Basis Basis Basis Budget

WATER OPERATING REVENUES
Water sales $1,100,000 $ 995000 $ 891686 $ (5596) $ 886,090 $ (108,910)
Sewer service charge 150,000 160,000 174,797 (13,963) 160,834 10,834
Impact fees 1,105 2,053 4,358 - 4,358 2,305
Infrastructure improvement fees 55,000 55,000 58,123 (1,466) 56,657 1,657
Miscellaneous 31,000 31,000 51,767 122 51,889 20,889
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES $1,337,105 $ 1,233,053 $1,180,731 $ (20,903) $1,159,828 $ (73,225)

OPERATING EXPENSES

Water administration $ 136,317 $ 136,253 $ 125305 $ (1421) $ 123884 $ (12,369)
Water expenses 657,428 668,872 578,381 11,442 589,823 (79,049)
Sewer expenses 153,185 161,755 286,476 (134,785) 151,691 (10,064)
Depreciation - - 179,813 (179,813) - -
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $ 946,930 3 966,880 $1,169,975 $ (304,577) $ 865398 $ (101,482)
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Component Units

Ovilla 4B Economic Development Cormporation - This fund is used to account for the Ovilla 4B
Economic Development Corporation created under Section 4B of the Development Corporation Act
of 1979, as amended, Article 5190.6, Vernon’s Texas civil statutes, as amended. The Ovilla 4B
Economic Development Corporation initiative is to promote economic development in Ovilla and is
currently accumulating funds to spend on future projects.

Ovilla Municipal Development District - This fund is used to account for the Ovilla Municipal
Development District, a political subdivision of the State of Texas and the City, created in
accordance with Chapter 377 of the Texas Local Government Code (the "Act"). The Ovilla Municipal
Development District was established for the purpose of developing and financing all permissible
projects prescribed by the Act.
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CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Ovilla 4B Ovilla
Economic Municipal Total
Development Development  Component
Corporation District Units
ASSETS
Receivables $ - 3 5132 % 5,132
Due from primary government 325,123 65,648 390,771
Total assets $ 325123 § 70,780 $ 395,903
LIABILITIES $ - $ - % -
FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:
Economic development 325,123 - 325,123
Municipal development - 70,780 70,780
Total fund balances 325,123 70,780 395,903
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 325123 % 70,780 $ 395,903
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CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
COMPONENT UNITS
Year Ended September 30, 2013

Ovilla 4B Ovilla
Economic Municipal Total
Development  Development Component
Corporation District Units
REVENUES
Sales tax $ 88,446 % 27989 % 116,435
Interest 881 142 1,023
Total revenues 89,327 28,131 117,458
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Economic development 13,974 - 13,974
Municipal development - 2,379 2,379
Total expenditures 13,974 2,379 16,353
Net change in fund balances 75,353 25,752 101,105
Fund balances - beginning 249,770 45,028 294,798
Fund balances - ending $ 325,123 § 70,780 % 395,903
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Supplementary Financial Data
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CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS
MISCELLANEQUS STATISTICAL FACTS
September 30, 2013

Estimated gallons billed (in thousands) 189,466
Estimated gallons purchased (in thousands) 198,206
Percent billed to purchased 95.59%
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Ovilla City Council
AGENDA ITEM REPORT

[tem (S) : 3 (City Secretary use only)

Meeting Date: February 24, 2014 Department: Administration
XDiscussion [ ]Action Budgeted Expense: [ JYES [ |NO XIN/A
Submitted By: Staff Amount: $N/A

Attachments:

1. None

Agenda ltem / Topic:

ITEM 3. DISCUSSION - Review status of City's progress in obtaining the Leadership Award
through the State Comptroller’s Office.

Discussion / Justification:

Tracie Wood with the auditing firm, Yeldell, Wilson & Co., P.C. was assigned the remaining tasks to
meet the Texas Comptroller Leadership Circle transparency award criteria to apply for the Platinum
Level. The City Accountant is reviewing both funds for complete descriptions and compiling
information on the remaining funds.

Recommendation / Staff Comments:

Sample Motion(s):

No Action on this item. Discussion only.




Ovilla City Council
AGENDA ITEM REPORT

[tem (S) 1 4 (City Secretary use only)

Meeting Date: February 24, 2014 Department: Administration
XDiscussion [X|Action Budgeted Expense: [[YES [ JNO [XIN/A
Submitted By: Staff Amount: $N/A

Attachments:

1. None

Agenda ltem / Topic:

ITEM 4. DISCUSSION/ACTION - Consider scheduling a date, time and location for a Town Hall
Meeting to receive feedback on the draft Citywide Five-Year Strategic Guide.

Discussion / Justification:

The Management Connection facilitated the strategic planning sessions involving the Council,
community and staff to determine the Vision, Mission, Values, and establish Goals to guide the City’s
planning and budgeting process. The Citywide Five-year Strategic Guide 2013-2018 identifies a
strategic plan consisting of priorities and communicates these priorities to city staff and the public.
City Council requested an additional opportunity be provided to the citizens of Ovilla to offer
feedback on the draft Strategic Guide.

This item provides City Council consideration for a Town Hall Meeting to be held at First Baptist
Ovilla, 3333 Ovilla Road, on Monday, March 24, 2014, beginning at 6:00 p.m.

The revised draft Strategic Guide will be placed on the City's website for citizens to review. The
announcement of the Town Hall Meeting will be shared with the citizens through the CTY phone
notification system and to those citizens who subscribe to the email notification system.

Recommendation / Staff Comments:

Staff recommends Council set the Town Hall Meeting for Monday, March 24, 2014, beginning at
6:00 p.m. at First Baptist Ovilla.

Sample Motion(s):

| move that Council set at pm, located at
Town Hall Meeting to receive feedback on the draft Citywide Five-Year Strategic Guide.




0vi|la City Council
AGENDA ITEM REPORT

Item(S) :5 (City Secretary use only)

Meeting Date: February 24, 2014 Department: Administration
XlDiscussion [X|Action Budgeted Expense: [ [YES [XINO [IN/A
Submitted By: Staff Amount: not to exceed $1,100.00

Attachments:

1. Resolution R2014-009
2. Fourth Letter of Understanding
3. Total fees incurred to date

Agenda ltem / Topic:

ITEM 5. DISCUSSION/ACTION - Consider approval of Resolution No. R2014-009 Authorizing
the Mayor to execute the Fourth Extension to the Letter of Understanding for
Consultation Services with Jacqueline Lee, Consultant with Texas First Group for an
amount not to exceed $1,100.00.

Discussion / Justification:

The City contracted with Texas First Group for the consultation services of Ms. Lee to provide a
thorough revision of the City's Employee Policies Handbook. This fourth extension provides
authorization of up to twenty hours (20) at $51.00 per hour for an amount not to exceed $1,100.00
including expenses. Ms. Lee will finalize the Employee Policies Handbook and format it for the City to
bind and distribute.

Recommendation / Staff Comments:

Staff recommends approval of Resolution R2014-009.

Sample Motion(s):

I move that Council APPROVE/DENY Resolution R2014-009, authorizing the Mayor to execute the
Fourth Extension to the Letter of Understanding for Consultation Services with Jacqueline Lee,
Consultant with Texas First Group for an amount not to exceed $1,100.00.




RESOLUTION NO. R-2014-009

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OVILLA,
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON
BEHALF OF THE CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS, A FOURTH EXTENSION
TO THE LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING FOR CONSULTATION
SERVICES, BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF OVILLA, TEXAS, AND
TEXAS FIRST GROUP FOR CONSULTATION SERVICES IN THE
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED ONE-THOUSAND, ONE HUNDRED
DOLLARS ($1,100.00).

&k ok kR

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OVILLA:

Section 1. The City Council of the City of Ovilla hereby authorizes the Mayor to
execute a Fourth Extension to the Letter of Agreement by and between the City
of Ovilla, Texas, and Texas First Group for Consultation Services of Jacqueline
Lee, for up to twenty (20) hours, including expenses, for an amount not to
exceed $1,100.00.

Section 2. A copy of said Extension is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made
a part hereof for all purposes.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this day of 2014.
ATTEST: APPROVED:
Pamela Woodall, CITY SECRETARY Richard Dormier, MAYOR

e S e o B e T e S B N B S e S N e N e N e e D S g e O L e e e SR |
R2014.009.Ltr.Extension.)Lee Page 1



Fourth Extension to the Letter of Understanding

for Consultation Services with the City of Ovilla

A Letter of Understanding agreement was authorized by the City of Ovilla City Council for
consultation services for a term of one month commencing June 24, 2013 through July 24, 2013
to retain the services of former Interim City Administrator, Jacqueline Lee. The Letter of
Understanding was extended by Agreement through August 26, 2013 and for an additional
thirty-two (32) hours as approved by the City Administrator. A Second Extension of the
Agreement was approved for up to ten hours (10) through December 10, 2013. Ms. Lee
presented the revisions to the Employee Policies Handbook at the workshop on December 09,
2013. Ms. Lee presented the remaining revised sections of the Handbook at a workshop held
January 27, 2014. A third extension authorized up to ten hours (10) through February 28, 2014.

This fourth extension authorizes up to twenty (20) hours at $51 per hour, not to exceed $1,100.00
including expenses, to finalize the Employee Policies Handbook and format it for the City to
bind and distribute.

A copy of the final approved agreement will be sent to Texas First Group.

The signatures below confirms the terms of the Extension to the Letter of Understanding

Richard Dormier, Mayor Date Jacqueline Lee, Consultant Date
City of Ovilla Texas First Group




Total Consulting and Legal Fees Incurred to Revise Personnel Policies Handbook

Consulting Expense for Jackie Lee to Work on Personnel Handbook

Hours @
Invoice $51.00 per
Date Time period Covered by Invoice Amount Hr. Expenses
7/29/2013 6/24/13 to 7/24/13 $7,689.55 150 39.55
9/4/2013 7/25/13 to 8/30/13 $4,400.19 82 31.64
11/1/2013 9/4/13 to 10/31/13 $1,663.64 32 31.64
*Total Expense Billed thru 01-21-14 $13,753.38 264 102.83

*Note: Jackie worked on the personnel handbook during her time as Interim City Administrator also,
but the consulting costs listed above only include the time since she left as City Administrator and
was retained as a consultant to finish the Personnel Handbook.

Legal Fees From Ron MacFarlane Related to the Personnel Manual
Invoice

Date Month Work Done Amount
7/31/2013 July $180.00
8/31/2013 Aug. $570.00
9/30/2013 Sept. $480.00
10/31/2013 Oct. $510.00
Total Expense Incurred thru 01-21-14 $1,740.00
Total Consulting & Legal Fees incurred thru 10-31-13 $15,493.38
Dollar

Date Council Approval of Consultant Hours #of Hours Amount

June 24th Thru July 24th 150 7,650.00

July 25th Thru Aug. 30th 96 4,896.00

Additional Hours Thru Dec.10, 2013 10 510.00

1/13/2014 Additional Hours Approved thru Feb. 28, 2014 10 510.00

266 13,566.00




0vi|la City Council
AGENDA ITEM REPORT

[tem (S) 6 (City Secretary use only)

Meeting Date: February 24, 2014 Department: Administration
XDiscussion [X]Action Budgeted Expense: [ IYES [ |NO XIN/A
Submitted By: Staff Amount: $N/A

Attachments:

1. EDC Attendance record

Agenda Item / Topic:

ITEM 6. DISCUSSION/ACTION - Consider recommendation from the EDC and take action to
remove of Place 3 Director Milke pursuant to EDC Bylaws, Article 1V, Section 2, and
direct staff to solicit for applications for board appointment(s).

Discussion / Justification:

At the February 18, 2014 EDC Meeting, the Board of Directors voted to recommend to Council the
removal of Place 3, Director Milke for consecutive absences without prior notification. Staff has
made attempts to contact Mr. Milke as well as EDC President Gary Jones with no success.

Recommendation / Staff Comments:

Staff recommends approval and permission to post notice for Board vacancies.

Sample Motion(s):

I move that Council APPROVE/DENY recommendation from the EDC to remove Place 3 Director
Milke pursuant to EDC Bylaws, Article IV, Section 2, and direct staff to solicit for applications for
board appointments.
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